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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K 
(Mark One)

Commission file number 0-9032 

SONESTA INTERNATIONAL HOTELS CORPORATION
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

 

 

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act. YesoNo x 
 
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Act. Yes o No x 
 
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 

months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports) and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes xNo o 
 

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein, and will not be contained, to the best of 
registrant's knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. x 

 
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or a non-accelerated filer, as defined on Rule 126-2 of the Exchange Act.  
 
Large accelerated filer oAccelerated filer  oNon-accelerated filer  x 
 
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes  oNo x 

 
The aggregate market value of the common stock held by non-affiliates of the registrant as of the close of business on June 30, 2006 was $24,588,512.  

 
The number of shares outstanding of the registrant's common stock as of the close of business on March 13, 2007 was 3,698,230.  

 

x ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15 (d) OF THE  
  SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934  
  For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006  
     
  OR  

o TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15 (d) OF THE  
  SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934  

For the transition period from   to  
   

NEW YORK   13-5648107 
(State or other jurisdiction or incorporation or organization)   (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

116 Huntington Avenue, Boston, MA 02116
(Address of principal executive offices, including zip code)

617-421-5400 
(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code) 

Securities to be registered pursuant to Section 12 (b) of the Act: 

Title of each class   Name of each exchange on which registered

Class A Common Stock   NASDAQGM

$.80 par value per share    

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12 (g) of the Act: None 



Documents incorporated by reference  
 

 

 
An Index to Exhibits appears on pages 15 through 19 of this Form 10-K.  

 
 

1.     Portions of the annual report to shareholders for the year ended December 31, 2006 are incorporated by reference into Parts I and II. The 2006 Annual Report is filed 
with this Form 10-K as Exhibit 13. 

2.     Portions of the proxy statement for the 2007 annual meeting of stockholders are incorporated by reference into Part III. 
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PART I

Item 1. Business 
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(a)     General Development of Business. The Company, a New York Corporation formed in 1923, is engaged in the operation of hotels that it owns or leases in Boston (Cambridge), 
Massachusetts; Key Biscayne, Florida; and New Orleans, Louisiana. It also operates, under management agreements, hotels in New Orleans, Louisiana; Coconut Grove, 
Florida; Sunny Isles Beach, Florida; and Cairo, Luxor, Port Said, Taba and Sharm el Sheikh (2), Egypt; and five Nile River cruise vessels. The Company has also entered into 
management agreements to operate new hotels being created in Orlando, Florida and in Qatar. In addition, the Company has franchise agreements for hotels in St. Maarten 
(2), Brazil (2) and Peru (6). During 2006, the Company commenced management of two additional Nile Cruise Ships. In addition, a licensed property was added in Brasilia, 
Brazil in October 2006, and a second licensed hotel was added in St. Maarten in November 2006. 
  
The Company transferred the land and improvements of Sonesta Beach Resort Key Biscayne to a development partnership, of which it is a 50% owner, in April 2005. The 
hotel closed for operations in August 2006. Detailed information regarding this major transaction is incorporated by reference from Note 2 to the Company’s consolidated 
financial statements (pages 19 through 21 of the Annual Report to Shareholders, filed herewith as Exhibit 13). 
  
In general, business levels declined during 2006. Revenues of Royal Sonesta Hotel Boston (Cambridge) increased, but this increase was offset by declines in revenues of 
Royal Sonesta Hotel New Orleans, and lower revenues of Sonesta Beach Resort Key Biscayne, which closed in August 2006 for redevelopment. In addition, income from 
management activities decreased slightly in 2006 compared to 2005. 

(b)     Financial Information About Segments. This information is incorporated by reference from Note 8 to the Company’s consolidated financial statements (pages 25 and 26 of 
the 2006 Annual Report to Shareholders, filed herewith as Exhibit 13). 

(c)     Narrative Description of Business and Competition. The Company's business is to a great extent dependent upon a high level of economic activity. The hotel business is 
highly competitive. In the major markets we operate, which are New Orleans, Miami and Boston, we compete with many other hotels of the same quality. A substantial 
number of these hotels compete for the same market segments as our hotels. The facilities of competitors are often affiliated with national or regional chains having more 
room accommodations and greater financial resources than the Company. The Company follows the practice of refurnishing and redecorating the hotels which it operates in 
order to keep the properties attractive and competitive with new hotel properties, and this requires the Company to make substantial capital expenditures. During the two 
years ended December 31, 2006, the Company made such capital expenditures totaling approximately $11 million.  
  
The Company endeavors to create individual and distinctive features for each hotel property while utilizing common corporate identification in order to obtain the benefits of 
chain operation. The Company is using the name "Sonesta" for all of its hotels. 
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          T he Company has approximately 1,074 employees. The Company considers its relations with its employees to be satisfactory. 

  
              While the business of the Company's individual hotels is seasonal, the diverse locations of the Company’s three owned or leased properties tend to mitigate the impact of 
this factor. Traditionally, only the third quarter 
               has produced significantly less revenues and operating income than the first, second and fourth quarters, although these seasonal fluctuations do not materially affect 
the Company's business activities. 

  
              The following tables reflects total revenues, annual occupancy percentages, average room rates and room revenues per available room ("REVPAR") for the Company's 
owned and leased properties for the years 2006, 
              2005 and 2004. REVPAR is calculated by dividing annual room revenue by the total number of rooms available during the year. 
 

Note: Royal Sonesta Hotel New Orleans did not generate revenues for a 15 day period following Hurricane Katrina, which struck New Orleans on August 29, 2005. Sonesta Beach Resort 
Key Biscayne closed for operations on August 31, 2006. The number of rooms available are adjusted accordingly.
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Hotel

 
    Number of Rooms 

Year Built of 
Acquired  

Total Revenues
(in thousands)  

                        
                2006  2005  2004 
                      
Sonesta Beach Resort Key Biscayne     Leased (1)     300     1998  $ 19,341  $ 27,395  $ 28,170 
Royal Sonesta Hotel Boston (Cambridge)     Owned     400     1963/1984    26,408    23,986    23,279 
Royal Sonesta Hotel New Orleans     Leased     500     1969    27,894    32,757    34,051 

(1)     In April 2005 the Company transferred the land and improvements of Sonesta Beach Resort Key Biscayne to a development partnership of which the Company is a 
50% owner. The hotel closed on August 31, 2006.

  Average Occupancy
Percentage

 
Average Daily RateHotel

             
  2006 2005 2004 2006 2005 2004

             
Sonesta Beach Resort Key Biscayne 71.4% 66.0% 69.5% $224 $208 $196
Royal Sonesta Hotel Boston (Cambridge) 64.6% 65.5% 64.8% 177 155 149
Royal Sonesta Hotel New Orleans 67.1% 82.2% 76.9% 154 163 165

    “REVPAR”  
            
Hotel   2006  2005  2004 
            
Sonesta Beach Resort Key Biscayne   $ 160  $ 137  $ 136 
Royal Sonesta Hotel Boston (Cambridge)     114    102    96 
Royal Sonesta Hotel New Orleans     103    134    127 
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The Company has established and maintains trademark protection for certain service marks it uses in conducting its business, including the service marks "Sonesta", 
"Sonesta Beach", "Just Us Kids", and the Company's stylized "S" logo. Trademarks are maintained in numerous countries, besides the United States. Each mark is generally 
protected for several years, subject to periodic renewal.  
 
For revenues by types of services provided for the three years ended December 31, 2006, reference is made to the Consolidated Statements of Operations which appear on 
page 12 of the 2006 Annual Report to Shareholders, filed herewith as Exhibit 13.  

 
Item 1A. Risk Factors 
 
The Company’s business is subject to various risks that could have a negative effect on the Company’s results from operations and its financial condition. These risks could cause 
results to differ materially from those expressed in forward-looking statements contained in the Managements’ Discussion and Analysis and the footnotes to the consolidated financial 
statements appearing in the Company’s 2006 Annual Report, which is filed herewith as Exhibit 13. Additional risks that the Company does not yet know of, or that it currently thinks are 
immaterial, may also affect our business operations or financial results. 
 
The lodging industry is highly competitive. The Company competes with much larger hotel chains, and its ability to compete successfully depends on its ability to offer business and 
leisure travelers lodging products and services that are perceived to be of equal of better quality and value than those offered by its competitors. 
 
The Company is subject to a range of operating risks common to the hotel industry. These operating risks include, but are not limited to: 
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(d)     Financial Information about Foreign and Domestic Operations. This information is incorporated by reference from Note 8 on pages 25 and 26 of the 2006 Annual Report to 
Shareholders, filed herewith as Exhibit 13. 

(e)     Environmental Compliance. Our compliance with laws and regulations relating to environmental protection and discharge of hazardous materials has not has a material 
impact on our capital expenditures or earnings. We do not anticipate any material impact from such compliance in the future. 

(f)     Internet Address and Company SEC Filings. Our Internet address is www.Sonesta.com. On the corporate governance portion of our website, under the Investor Relations 
sections, we provide a link to the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission website. Included on this website are our annual reports on Form 10-K, our quarterly reports on 
Form 10-Q, our current reports on Form 8-K and any amendments to these reports. 

1)     the availability of and demand for hotel rooms in the markets we operate; 

2)     international, national and regional economic and political conditions; 

3)     the impact of war and terrorist activity (including threats of terrorist activity and other matter that influence and/or limit travel, such as travelers’ fears of contagious diseases 
(i.e. Bird Flu); 
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There are certain risks that pose a more significant threat to the Company’s future results and financial condition, because of the particular businesses the Company is involved in, and 
the markets in which we operate. 

The Company’s Key Biscayne partnership may experience increased costs and delays while developing a new resort. The Company is a 50% partner in a development partnership, 
which was created in 2005 to redevelop the site of Sonesta Beach Resort Key Biscayne. The Company received approximately $60 million in non-refundable proceeds in April 2005 after 
it contributed the land and improvements of Sonesta Beach Resort Key Biscayne to the development partnership. In addition, the Company received an priority equity position, valued 
by the partnership at $60 million. Future proceeds are dependent on the successful development of a new resort, and the sales of condominium units at sufficient prices to cover all 
costs of the development and construction of the new resort. Partnership efforts to obtain building permits for the new development have met opposition from residents of the Village of 
Key Biscayne, delaying the permitting process, resulting in increases in development costs. It is uncertain at this point when construction of the new resort will start. In addition, the 
partnership may consider changes to the original plans, which called for a condominium hotel of approximately 300 rooms, to allow for a smaller hotel and a larger residential component. 

Because the Company’s U.S. hotels are located in only three markets, a decline in market conditions in any of these markets could have an adverse impact on the Company’s results 
of operations. A major portion of the Company’s revenues and income is derived from its owned and leased hotels, and from its managed hotels, in the United States. Of the Company’s 
five U.S. hotels it operated at the end of 2006, two are located in the Miami, Florida area, two are located in New Orleans, and one is located in Cambridge, Massachusetts. This means 
the Company’s future results are heavily dependent on the market conditions and the supply of and demand for hotel rooms in these specific markets. 

Hurricanes and other natural disasters can damage our properties and affect our results of operations. Four of the Company’s five U.S. hotels operating at the end of 2006 are located 
either in New Orleans or in the Miami, Florida area. These areas are prone to hurricanes, and the Company’s financial condition will be impacted if its hotels suffer damage from 
hurricanes, as well as from the loss of business due to hurricane activity in these areas. In 2005, the Company’s results were impacted by Hurricanes Katrina and Rita, which affected the 
New Orleans region, and by Hurricanes Katrina, Rita and Wilma, which affected the Miami, Florida area. As a result of the high cost of insurance for these catastrophic risks, damage to 
hotels and loss of income may only be partially covered by insurance, since the Company, and the owners of the Company’s managed hotels, have significant deductibles, and certain 
caps on coverages for windstorm and flood.
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4)     the occurrence of natural disasters, such as hurricanes; 

5)     taxes and government regulations that influence or determine wages, and cost prices of goods and services the Company uses to operate its hotels; 

6)     the availability and cost of capital to allow us and potential hotel owners and joint venture partners to fund investments; 

7)     relationships and disputes with owners of our hotels operated under management agreements. 
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The Company’s properties in New Orleans may continue to be adversely impacted by the loss of business and increased cost due to Hurricane Katrina. The Company operates two 
hotels in New Orleans, Louisiana. The business in this market has historically been heavily dependent on group and convention business. Hurricane Katrina, which struck New Orleans 
on August 29, 2005, caused major damage to the city’s convention center and infrastructure, resulting in the cancellation of substantially all group and convention business following 
the storm. During the period September 2005 through March 2006, the Royal Sonesta Hotel New Orleans successfully replaced the convention business with government business and 
other business related to the recovery and rebuilding efforts in New Orleans. However, from April 2006 forward the hotel’s results declined sharply due to the fact that group and 
convention business is returning very slowly to New Orleans. This trend is expected to continue throughout 2007. Chateau Sonesta Hotel New Orleans, which the Company operates 
under a management contract, also suffered a severe downturn in business compared to previous years, for the same reason. Following Katrina, a significant number of the Company’s 
employees were forced to leave the City due to the lack of housing. Replacement staff is in very short supply, and payroll costs have increased as a result. 

The Company’s fee income from its operations in Egypt may be adversely impacted by terrorism. During 2006, the Company’s management revenues from its hotels in Egypt totaled 
approximately $1.7 million ($1.9 million in 2005). In previous years, Egypt has experienced terrorist activity, which affected tourism. Potential future terrorist incidents will affect tourism 
to Egypt, and the Company’s management income from this region. 

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments 
 
None 

Item 2. Properties  
 
The Company's hotels are primarily metropolitan and resort hotels in popular vacation areas which emphasize luxury accommodations and personal service.  
 
The Company has fee ownership in Royal Sonesta Hotel, Boston (Cambridge), Massachusetts. Sonesta Beach Resort Key Biscayne was owned by the Company until April 2005, when 
it transferred the land and assets into a development partnership, of which the Company is a 50% owner. From April 2005 through August 2006, the Key Biscayne property was 
operated under a $1 per year lease with the development partnership. Detailed information regarding this major transaction is incorporated by reference from Note 2 to the Company’s 
consolidated financial statements (pages 19 through 21 of the Annual Report to Shareholders, filed herewith as Exhibit 13). Reference is made to Note 4 of the Notes to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements of the Company which appears on page 22 of the Company's 2006 Annual Report to Shareholders, filed herewith as Exhibit 13, for details of the mortgage lien on 
the Boston (Cambridge), Massachusetts property. 
 
The Company operates the Royal Sonesta Hotel, New Orleans, Louisiana under a long-term lease which expires on September 30, 2024, provided the Company exercises its remaining 
ten-year extension option. As of March 3, 2007, the Company has exercised options through September 30, 2014. 
 
The Company also operates under management agreements hotels in Coconut Grove (Miami), Florida; Sunny Isles Beach, Florida; New Orleans, Louisiana; and Cairo, Luxor, Port Said, 
Taba and Sharm el Sheikh (2), Egypt; and five Nile River cruise vessels. At December 31, 2006 the Company has granted licenses for the use of its name to six hotels in Peru, two hotels 
in St. Maarten, and two hotels in Brazil.  
 
In addition to the properties listed above, the Company leases space for its executive offices at 116 Huntington Avenue, Boston, Massachusetts 02116. That lease commenced May 1, 
2002, and has a 10-year term.  
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings  
 
Trump International Sonesta Beach Resort Sunny Isles  
 
Sonesta Hotels of Florida, Inc. (“SHF”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, operates the Trump International Sonesta Beach Resort (the “Hotel”) in Sunny Isles, Florida, 
under a management agreement with the Hotel’s owner, Sunny Isles Luxury Ventures L.C. (“SILV”). The Hotel opened for business on April 1, 2003.  
 
The Hotel is a condominium hotel. The guestrooms are owned by third party buyers and, to the extent condominium units remain unsold, by SILV. The management agreement 
included options for SHF to purchase the Hotel’s non-guestroom areas (the “Hotel Lot”) for twenty million dollars ($20,000,000), and the Hotel’s meeting facilities (the “Commercial 
Lot”) for four million dollars ($4,000,000). The purchase price for both the Hotel and Commercial Lots would be 100% financed by SILV by means of a non-recourse, 25-year loan 
secured by a mortgage on the property acquired. SHF exercised its purchase option for the Hotel Lot in September 2004, and the parties agreed that they would close the 
transaction in early January 2005. Despite its earlier agreements, SILV took the position that it would not close on this transaction and, in response, the Company filed a lawsuit in 

the Circuit Court of the 11th Judicial Circuit in Miami-Dade County, Florida, to compel SILV to close the transaction. In connection with a mediation procedure, SILV and SHF 
entered into a settlement agreement, in September 2005, which addressed a number of issues, including that, subject to certain contingencies, the transaction would close in 
January 2006. The closing of the purchase did not occur as a result of SILV’s repeated and material breaches of the purchase option, the settlement agreement of September 2005 
and other agreements intended to consummate the transaction contemplated by the purchase option.  
 
The Company concluded that it could not realize the benefits it reasonably expected when it exercised the option in September 2004. As a result, the Company notified SILV in late 
September 2006 that it rescinded the exercise of the purchase option. SHF will continue to manage the Hotel pursuant to the terms of its management agreement. Since the payments 
under the note following a purchase of the Hotel Lot and Commercial Lot would have been substantially the same as the minimum payments due to SILV under the management 
agreement, there is no detrimental effect on the Company’s cash flow as a result of this rescission. 
 
Other 
 
The Company is also from time to time subject to routine litigation incidental to its business, and generally covered by insurance. The Company believes that the results of such 
litigation will not have a materially adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition. 

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders 
 
No matters were submitted to security holders during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006. 
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PART II

 
Item 5. Market for the Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities  
 
Common stock market prices and dividends and the number of shareholders of record are incorporated by reference from page 2 of the 2006 Annual Report to Shareholders, filed 
herewith as Exhibit 13.  
 
A special dividend of $1.00 per share was paid in June 2005, and a dividend of $0.10 per share was declared in December 2005, but was paid in January 2006. A dividend of $ 0.10 per 
share was paid in July 2006, and a dividend of $0.10 per share was declared in December 2006, but paid in January 2007. Other information required by this item is incorporated by 
reference from the Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity which appears on page 15 of the 2006 Annual Report to Shareholders, filed herewith as Exhibit 13.  
 
Item 6. Selected Financial Data  
 
Selected Financial Data, which appears on page 2 of the 2006 Annual Report to Shareholders, filed herewith as Exhibit 13, is incorporated herein by reference.  
 

 
This information is incorporated by reference from pages 4 through 11 of the 2006 Annual Report to Shareholders, filed herewith as Exhibit 13.  
 
Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk  
 
This information is incorporated by reference from page 10 of the 2006 Annual Report to Shareholders, filed herewith as Exhibit 13. 
 
Item 8. Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplementary Data  
 
The financial statements listed in the Index to Consolidated Financial Statements filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, together with the report of Vitale, Caturano & 
Company, Ltd. dated March 15, 2007 are incorporated herein by reference from the 2006 Annual Report to Shareholders, filed herewith as Exhibit 13.  
 
Selected Quarterly Financial Data are incorporated by reference on page 10 of the 2006 Annual Report to Shareholders, filed herewith as Exhibit 13.  

There were no disagreements with the Company’s independent auditors on accounting principles or practices or financial statement disclosures during 2006. 
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Item 7.  Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure 
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Item 9A. Controls and Procedures 
 
As of December 31, 2006, the Company’s management carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and 
President, Chief Executive Officer and Vice Chairman, and Vice President and Treasurer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company’s disclosure controls and 
procedures pursuant to Rules 13a-15 and 15d-15 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Based on that evaluation, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and President, Chief Executive 
Officer and Vice Chairman, and Vice President and Treasurer concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures are effective, as of December 31, 2006. 
 
There have been no significant changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended December 31, 2006 that have materially affected, or are 
reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. 
 
 Item 9B. Other Information 
 
None 
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PART III

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance   
 
The Company’s Executive Officers are: 
 

 

Table of Contents

 
Name

 
Present Position

 
Age

Employment History
2001 to Present

Roger P. Sonnabend Executive Chairman of the Board 81 Chairman and Chief Executive Officer until December 2003 
Peter J. Sonnabend Chief Executive Officer and Vice Chairman 53 Vice Chairman and Vice President until December 2003, Secretary until 

May 2003 
Stephanie Sonnabend Chief Executive Officer and President 54 President until December 2003 
Paul Sonnabend Chairman of the Executive Committee and 

Executive Vice President
79 Chairman of the Executive Committee and Chief Financial Officer until 

December 2003
Stephen Sonnabend Senior Vice President 75 Senior Vice President
Boy van Riel Vice President and Treasurer 48 Vice President and Treasurer
Carol Beggs Vice President, Technology 46 Vice President, Technology
Felix Madera Vice President, International 58 Vice President, International

 
Kathy Rowe Senior Vice President 48 Vice President, Food and Beverage until December 2003
Jacqueline Sonnabend Executive Vice President 52 Executive Vice President
Alan M. Sonnabend Vice President, Development 49 Vice President and General Manager, Sonesta Beach Resort Key 

Biscayne, until May 2002; Vice President and General Manager, Trump 
International Sonesta Beach Resort, until October 2004
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Directors of the Company and Compliance with Section 16 (a). The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference from the Company’s proxy statement for the 
2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which will be held on May 10, 2007.

 
Code of Ethics for Senior Financial Executives and Directors. The Company, for many years, has had in place a written Code of Ethics covering, among other subjects, ethical 
behavior, compliance with laws, and conflicts of interest. This Code of Ethics was adopted by the Company's Board of Directors and is applicable to all Company employees, including 
Senior Financial Officers and Directors. Each year, Company Directors, officers, management, supervisory and administrative employees are required to acknowledge, in writing, that 
they have read and understood the Company's Code of Ethics. 
 
A copy of the Company’s Code of Ethics is posted on its web site at www.sonesta.com.  
 
Audit Committee Charter. The Company’s Audit Committee Charter, which is posted on the Company’s website at www.Sonesta.com, outlines the Committee’s purpose, 
responsibilities, and authorities, and is reviewed and reassessed by the Audit Committee on an annual basis. 

Audit Committee Members and Financial Expert. The Company's Board of Directors has an Audit Committee consisting of Messrs. George S. Abrams, Vernon R. Alden, Joseph L. 
Bower and Charles J. Clark. All the members of the Audit Committee are financially literate and independent. Mr. Clark, who the Company considers a financial expert, as defined by 
NASDAQ rules, and an audit committee financial expert, as defined by SEC rules, serves as Chairman of the Audit Committee. Mr. Clark has 35 years of experience as a commercial 
banker, 25 years of which were spent managing a commercial lending department, and 2 years as head of a commercial credit department. Mr. Clark has vast experience in reviewing and 
evaluating financial statements. 
 
Item 11. Executive Compensation  
 
The information required by this Item 11 is incorporated herein by reference from the Company’s proxy statement for the 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which will be held on 
May 10, 2007. 

 
This information is incorporated by reference from the Company’s proxy statement for the 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which will be held on May 10, 2007. 
 
The Company has no equity compensation plans for which disclosure under Item 201(d) of Regulation S-K is required. 

 
This information is incorporated by reference from the Company’s Proxy Statement for the 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which will be held on May 10, 2007. 
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Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholders Matters

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence 
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Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services 
  
Auditors.  Vitale, Caturano & Company, Ltd. has served as the Company’s independent auditors since 2004. A representative of Vitale, Caturano & Company Ltd. is expected to be 
present at our annual meeting, with the opportunity to make a statement if he or she desires to do so. This representative will be available to respond to appropriate questions from 
shareholders who are present at our annual meeting.  
 
The fees for services provided by Vitale, Caturano & Company, Ltd. to us in the last two fiscal years were as follows:

(1)Other fees include tax advisory fees and consultation on unusual audit and accounting matters that arose during the accounting period, in particular related to the redevelopment of 
Sonesta Beach Resort Key Biscayne.

The Company’s Audit Committee has established policies and procedures which are intended to control the services provided by the Company’s auditors and to monitor their 
continuing independence. Under these policies, no services may be undertaken by the Company’s auditors unless the engagement is specifically approved by the Company’s Audit 
Committee or the services are included within a category which has been pre-approved by the Audit Committee. The maximum charge for services is established by the audit committee 
when the specific engagement or the category of services is approved or pre-approved. In certain circumstances, management is required to notify the Audit Committee when pre-
approved services are undertaken and the Committee or its Chairman may approve amendments or modifications of the engagement or the maximum fees. 
  
The Company’s Audit Committee will not approve engagements of the Company’s auditors to perform non-audit services for the Company if doing so will cause the auditors to cease 
to be independent within the meaning of applicable SEC or NASDAQ rules. In other circumstances, the Audit Committee considers among other things, whether the auditors are able to 
provide the required services in a more or less effective and efficient manner than other available service providers. 
  
All services for which the Company engages the auditors are approved by the Audit Committee. The total fees the Company paid to Vitale Caturano & Company Ltd. for services in 
2005 and 2006 are set forth above.  
  
The Company’s Audit Committee approved the engagement of Vitale, Caturano & Company Ltd. to provide audit related services in 2005 and 2006, respectively (which include the 
annual audits of the Company’s Pension Plan and 401(k) Plan) because it determined that for Vitale, Caturano & Company Ltd. to provide these services would not compromise its 
independence, and that its familiarity with the Company’s record keeping and accounting systems would permit them to provide these services with equal or higher quality, more 
quickly and at a cost similar to what the Company could obtain these services from other providers.  
  

Table of Contents

    FY 2005   FY 2006  
         
Audit Fees   $ 122,000  $ 130,000 
Audit of Pension and 401(k)            

Benefit Plans     12,000    14,000 
Other Fees (1)     47,780    700 
       
Total Fees   $ 181,780  $ 144,700 
       

 
11



 
PART IV

Item 15 Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules 
 

 

Table of Contents

(a) 1.     Financial Statements: The financial statements listed in the accompanying Index to Consolidated Financial Statements are incorporated by reference from the 2006 
Annual Report to Shareholders, filed herewith as Exhibit 13. 

  2.     Financial Statement Schedules: The financial statement schedules required to be filed by Item 8 of this form are listed in the accompanying Index to Consolidated 
Financial Statements, and are included in the notes to the financial statements, incorporated by reference from the 2006 Annual Report to Shareholders, filed herewith 
as Exhibit 13. 

  3.     A list of Exhibits is included on pages 15 through 19 of this report on Form 10-K. 
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SONESTA INTERNATIONAL HOTELS CORPORATION

Index to Consolidated Financial Statements
and Financial Statement Schedule

All other schedules for which provision is made in the applicable accounting regulation of the Securities and Exchange Commission are not required under the related instructions or are 
inapplicable and therefore have been omitted. 
_________________________________________________________ 
*Filed herewith as Exhibit 13  

Table of Contents

Item 15(a) (1) and (2) References (Page)

     
   

Form 10-K 
 

2006 Annual Report to Shareholders*

     
Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2006 and 2005   13,14

     
For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004:    
     

Consolidated Statements of Operations   12

     
Consolidated Statements of Stockholder’s  Equity and Comprehensive Income (Loss)   15,16

     
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flow   17

     
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements   18

     
Consolidated Financial Statement Schedule II for the year ended December 31, 2006    
     
II Consolidated Valuation and Qualifying  Accounts 14  
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SONESTA INTERNATIONAL HOTELS CORPORATION  
SCHEDULE II  

   
Consolidated Valuation and Qualifying Accounts  

Three Years Ended December 31, 2006  
                   
    Balance

Beginning
Of Year

  Amounts
Charged

To Income

   
Amounts

Written Off

  Balance
End of
Year

 
   
   
               
Year Ended December 31, 2004                      
                       

Allowance for doubtful accounts   $ 221,024  $ 2,289  $ 11,366  $ 211,947 
                       
Year Ended December 31, 2005                      
                       

Allowance for doubtful accounts   $ 211,947  $ 1,425  $ 119,666  $ 93,706 
                       
Year Ended December 31, 2006                      
                       

Allowance for doubtful accounts   $ 93,706  $ 2,000  $ 9,013  $ 86,693 
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SONESTA INTERNATIONAL HOTELS CORPORATION
Index to Exhibits

   
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

3.1 Certificate of Incorporation, as amended to date. (13)
3.2 Company By-laws, as amended to date. (13) 
10.1 Management Agreement, between Sonesta Hotels of Florida, Inc., and Sunny Isles Luxury Ventures L.C., Trustee, dated as of June 21, 2001. (11) 
10.2 Purchase and Sale Agreement, between Sonesta Hotels of Anguilla, Limited, and Flag Luxury Properties (Anguilla), LLC, dated July 26, 2002. (11) 
10.4 (a) Management Agreement, between Sonesta Coconut Grove, Inc. (“SCG”), and Mutiny on the Park, Ltd. (“Mutiny”), dated December 22, 2000. (10) 
10.4 (b) Letter of Amendment of Management Agreement, between SCG and Mutiny, dated January 5, 2001. (10)
10.4 (c) Intercreditor Agreement, between SCG, Mutiny and Ricardo Dunin Borkowsky (“Dunin”), dated December 22, 2000. (10) 
10.4 (e) Promissory Note ($4,000,000) in favor of SCG, dated December 22, 2000. (10)
10.4 (g) Collateral Pledge and Escrow Agreement ($4,000,000), dated December 22, 2000. (10)
10.5 (a) Unsecured demand line of credit agreement, dated December 31, 2004, between Citizens Bank of Massachusetts (“Citizens”) and Sonesta International 

Hotels Corporation (“Sonesta”). (13) 
10.5 (b) Fifth Allonge to $2,000,000 Commercial Promissory Note dated September 29, 2000 (the “Note”), dated December 31, 2004, between Sonesta and Citizens, 

acknowledging that the Note is payable on demand. (13) 
10.5 (c) Commercial Promissory Note ($2,000,000) from Sonesta to Citizens, dated September 29, 2000. (9) 
10.6 (a) Mortgage and Loan Modification Agreement, dated as of March 24, 2004, between SunAmerica, Charterhouse of Cambridge Trust (“Trust”) and Sonesta of 

Massachusetts, Inc. (“Sonesta Mass”). (12) 
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NUMBER DESCRIPTION 
10.6 (b) Reaffirmation and Modification of Limited Guaranty Agreement and Environmental Indemnity Agreement, dated as of March 24, 2004, between SunAmerica, 

Trust and Sonesta Mass. (12) 
10.6 (c) Amended and Restated Promissory Note ($41,000,000), dated May 30, 2000, from the Trustees of Trust and Sonesta Mass to SunAmerica Life Insurance 

Company (“SunAmerica”). (9) 
10.6 (d) Mortgage and Loan Modification Agreement, dated as of May 30, 2000, between Trust and Sonesta Mass, and SunAmerica. (9) 
10.6 (e) Reaffirmation and Modification of Limited Guaranty Agreement and Environmental Indemnity Agreement, dated as of May 30, 2000, between Trust, Sonesta 

Mass, and Sonesta International Hotels Corporation (“Sonesta”), and SunAmerica. (9) 
10.6 (f) Deficiency Guaranty Agreement, dated as of May 30, 2000, between Trust, Sonesta Mass, and SunAmerica, “Escrow Agent”. (9) 
10.8 (a) Fifth Amendment to Loan Agreement, dated January 1, 2004, providing for an additional $300,000 loan to Masters of Tourism for “New Employee Housing”

to the two hotels in Sharm El Sheikh: Sonesta Beach and Sonesta Club. (12) 
10.8 (b) Promissory Note ($1,116,853), from Masters of Tourism to Sonesta International Hotels Limited (“SIHL”), dated July 1, 2002. (11) 
10.8 (c) Fourth Amendment to Loan Agreement, dated July 1, 2002, providing for an additional $500,000 loan to Masters of Tourism for “Essential New Facilities”. 

(11) 
10.8 (d) Loan Agreement ($1,000,000), dated December 18, 1996, between Masters of Tourism and SIHL. (5) 
10.8 (e) (Personal) Guaranty of Hisham Aly, dated as of December 18, 1996. (5) 
10.8 (f) Loan Agreement ($277,935) dated as of January 1, 1997, between Masters of Tourism and SIHL (consolidating two (2) outstanding loan balances). (5) 
10.8 (g) Amendment to Loan Agreement, dated April 29, 1997, between Masters of Tourism and SIHL. (6) 
10.8 (h) (Personal) Guaranty of Hisham Aly, dated as of April 29, 1997. (6) 
10.8 (i)  Second Amendment to Loan Agreement, dated September 15, 1998, between Masters of Tourism and SIHL. (7) 
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NUMBER DESCRIPTION
10.8 (j) Third Amendment to Loan Agreement, dated January 1, 2000, between Masters of Tourism and SIHL. (8) 
10.9 Indenture of Lease, dated March 18, 2002, between ATC Realty, Inc. and Sonesta International Hotels International Hotels Corporation. (11)  
10.11 (a) Hotel Lease, dated December 12, 1967, between Chateau Louisiane, Inc., as "Landlord", and The Royal Orleans, Inc., as "Tenant". (1)  
10.11 (b) Hotel Lease-Amendment No. 1, dated November 26, 1973, between Chateau Louisiane, Inc. and Louisiana Sonesta Corporation. (2) 
10.11 (c) Hotel Lease-Amendment No. 2, dated September 1, 1977, between Chateau Louisiane, Inc. and Royal Sonesta, Inc. (3) 
10.12 (a) Restated Employment Agreement, dated January 1, 1992, between Sonesta and Paul Sonnabend, together with letter agreement regarding permanent and 

total disability. (4) (Management contract under Item 601 (10)(iii) (A)) 
10.12 (b) Restated Employment Agreement, dated January 1, 1992, between Sonesta and Roger P. Sonnabend, together with letter agreement regarding permanent and 

total disability. (4) (Management contract under Item 601 (10) (iii) (A)). 
10.12 (c) Restated Employment Agreement, dated January 1, 1992, between Sonesta and Stephen Sonnabend together with letter agreement regarding permanent and 

total disability. (4) (Management contract under Item 601 (10) (iii) (A)). 
10.12 (d) Amendment to Restated Employment Agreement, dated May 16, 2005, between Sonesta and Paul Sonnabend. (15) 
10.12 (e) Amendment to Restated Employment Agreement, dated May 16, 2005, between Sonesta and Roger P. Sonnabend. (15) 
10.12 (f) Amendment to Restated Employment Agreement, dated May 16, 2005, between Sonesta and Stephen Sonnabend. (15) 
10.12 (g) Summary of Director compensation. (15) 
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NUMBER DESCRIPTION
10.13 (c) Loan Agreement, dated February 15, 2006, between SIHL, as Lender, and Mamdouh & Basem Philipco (“MBP”), as Borrower, regarding a U.S. $500,000 loan 

to assist in the financing of improvements to portions of Sonesta St. George Hotel, in Luxor, Egypt (the “Hotel”). (16) 
10.13 (d) Promissory Note (U.S. $500,000) from MBP to SIHL, dated February 15, 2006 to be repaid on or before March 15, 2007. (16) 
10.13 (e) Loan Agreement, dated December 31, 2006, between SIHL, as Lender, and MBP, as Borrower, regarding a U.S. $300,000 loan to the Hotel. (Filed herewith) 
10.13 (f) Promissory Note (U.S. $300,000) from MBP to SIHL, dated December 1, 2006, to be repaid on or before December 31, 2007. (Filed herewith) 
10.14 (a) Agreement of Limited Liability Limited Partnership of SBR-Fortune Associates, LLLP, dated as of January 17, 2005, between Fortune KB GP, LLC, General 

Partner, Fortune KB, LLC, Limited Partner, and Sonesta Beach Resort Limited Partnership, Limited Partner. (13) 
10.14 (b) First Amendment to partnership agreement of SBR - Fortune Associates, LLLP, dated as of January 17, 2005. (13) 
10.14 (c) Second Amendment to partnership agreement of SBR - Fortune 199 - 203 Associates, LLLP, dated as of January 17, 2005. (13) 
10.14 (d) Agreement of Merger, dated as of April 2005, by and among SBR-Fortune Associates, LLLP, a Florida limited liability limited partnership (“SBR”), Sonesta 

Beach Resort LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (the “Company”) and Sonesta Beach Resort Limited Partnership, a Delaware limited partnership (the 
“Sonesta”). (14) 

10.14 (e) Interim Lease Agreement, dated as of April 19, 2005, by and between SBR-Fortune Associates, LLLP, a Florida limited liability limited partnership 
(“Landlord”), and Sonesta Beach Resort Limited Partnership, a Delaware limited partnership (“Tenant”). (14) 

13 Annual Report to Security Holders for the calendar year ended December 31, 2006. (Filed herewith) 
21 Subsidiaries of the Registrant. (Filed herewith) 
23 Consent of Vitale, Caturano & Company, Ltd. (Filed herewith) 
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NUMBER DESCRIPTION
31 (a) Certification required by Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. (Filed herewith) 
31 (b) Certification required by Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. (Filed herewith) 
31 (c) Certification required by Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. (Filed herewith) 
32 Certification required by 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 (Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002). (Furnished herewith) 

(1)     Incorporated by reference to the Company's 1967 Report on Form 10 K. 

(2)     Incorporated by reference to the Company's 1973 Report on Form 10-K. 

(3)     Incorporated by reference to the Company's 1977 Report on Form 10-K. 

(4)     Incorporated by reference to the Company's 1992 Report on Form 10-K. 

(5)     Incorporated by reference to the Company's 1996 Report on Form 10-K. 

(6)     Incorporated by reference to the Company's 1997 Report on Form 10-K. 

(7)     Incorporated by reference to the Company's 1998 Report on Form 10-K. 

(8)     Incorporated by reference to the Company's 1999 Report on Form 10-K. 

(9)     Incorporated by reference to the Company’s 2000 Report on Form 10-K. 

(10)     Incorporated by reference to the Company’s 2001 Report on Form 10-K. 

(11)     Incorporated by reference to the Company’s 2002 Report on Form 10-K. 

(12)     Incorporated by reference to the Company’s 2003 Report on Form 10-K. 

(13)     Incorporated by reference to the Company’s 2004 Report on Form 10-K. 

(14)     Incorporated by reference to the Company’s current report on Form 8-K, filed on April 22, 2005. 

(15)     Incorporated by reference to the Company’s current report on Form 8-K, Filed on May 17, 2005. 

(16)     Incorporated by reference to the Company’s 2005 Report on Form 10-K. 
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, 
thereunto duly authorized.  
 
SONESTA INTERNATIONAL HOTELS CORPORATION  
(Registrant)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities 
and on the dates indicated. 
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/s/ Boy van Riel Date: March 20, 2007

Boy van Riel 
Vice President and Treasurer 

 

Principal Financial and Accounting Officer  

/s/ Roger P. Sonnabend Date: March 20, 2007

Roger P. Sonnabend 
Executive Chairman of the Board, 
Director 

 

/s/ Boy van Riel Date: March 20, 2007

Boy van Riel 
Vice President and Treasurer 

 

Principal Financial and Accounting Officer  

/s/ Paul Sonnabend Date: March 20, 2007

Paul Sonnabend 
Director 

 

/s/ Peter J. Sonnabend Date: March 20, 2007

Peter J. Sonnabend 
Chief Executive Officer and Vice Chairman, 
Director 

 

/s/ Stephanie Sonnabend Date: March 20, 2007

Stephanie Sonnabend 
Chief Executive Officer and President, 
Director 

 

/s/ George S. Abrams Date: March 20, 2007

George S. Abrams 
Director 

 

/s/ Vernon R. Alden Date: March 20, 2007

Vernon R. Alden 
Director 
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/s/ Joseph L. Bower Date: March 20, 2007

Joseph L. Bower 
Director 

 

/s/ Charles J. Clark Date: March 20, 2007

 
Charles J. Clark 
Director 

 

/s/ Jean C. Tempel Date: March 20, 2007

Jean C. Tempel  
Director 
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Exhibit 10.13(c) 
 
 
 
 
 
December 1, 2006 
 
Mamdouh Philippe, President 
Mamdouh & Basem Philipco 
Nefertari Street 
Luxor, Egypt 
 

RE: Loan Agreement: U.S. $300,000.00 
 
Dear Mr. Philippe: 
 
This letter agreement shall be deemed a Loan Agreement under which Sonesta International Hotels Limited (“Sonesta”) will advance the sum of U.S. $300,000.00 to Mamdouh & Basem 
Philipco, “Owner” of Sonesta St. George Hotel, Luxor (“Hotel”), by assumption of obligations, dated as of October 15, 2004, regarding that certain Management Agreement, dated May 
11, 1995, originally between Philippe Co. for Hotels, as Owner, and Sonesta, as Operator (the “Management Agreement”). 
 
Amount of Loan: U.S. $300,000.00, which amount has been advanced to date by way of unpaid fees and other amounts due to Sonesta under the Management Agreement. 
 
Purpose: To provide for payment of the amount due Sonesta for unpaid fees and other amounts, together with interest. 
 
Repayment of Loan: The Loan shall be repaid to Sonesta International Hotels Limited (“Lender”), in currency of the United States, in nine (9) monthly installments, each of which shall 
be due and payable on the first day of each calendar month. The first monthly payment shall be due and payable April 1, 2007. (The attached “Repayment Schedule” reflects the 
monthly repayment of the Loan, together with interest at the Interest Rate.) 
 
Interest Rate: The Loan shall be repaid, together with interest at the “Interest Rate”, which shall be equal to 8.25% per annum (the current Prime Rate). 
 
Default Rate/Charges: In the event that the Loan is not repaid in accordance with this letter agreement, or if any portion of the Loan, or Loan interest, remains unpaid as of December 1, 
2007, interest shall accrue on the amount of the Loan, and interest, then outstanding at the rate of twelve percent (12%) per annum. Borrower shall also be responsible for reimbursing 
Lender for any costs Lender incurs in enforcing this letter agreement, including reasonable attorney’s fees. 
  
Authority of Lender, as Operator, to Make Payments: Borrower, as Owner of the Hotel under the Management Agreement, hereby authorizes and instructs Lender, as Operator of the 
Hotel under said Management Agreement, to repay the Loan, in accordance with this letter agreement, from the income of the Hotel, and to charge any such amounts used to repay the 
Loan, or to pay interest thereon, to the Owner’s account. 
 
Prepayment: Borrower may prepay the Loan, and interest thereon, at any time without charge or penalty. 
 
In Witness Whereof, the parties have set their hands and seals as of this December 31, 2006. 
 

 
 

GUARANTY
The undersigned, Mamdouh Philippe Megalaa, individually, agrees, jointly and severally, to guaranty the obligations of the Borrower, Mamdouh & Basem Philipco, under the above 
loan letter agreement. The Creditor shall have the right to demand payment from me, on a several basis, without need for first demanding payment from the Debtor. 
 
 
By: /s/    Mamdouh Philippe Megalaa 

Mamdouh Philippe Megalaa 
 
Date: December 31, 2006 
 

 Borrower      Lender:  Sonesta International Hotels Corporation
/s/ Mamdouh & Basem Philipco     /s/ Boy A.J. van Riel

   
Name:  Mamdouh Philippe
Title:  President

    Name:  Boy A,J, van Riel
Title:  Vice President & Treasurer



Exhibit 10.13(f)

Promissory Note
 
 

 
Amount:  U.S. $300,000.00
Name of Debtor: Mamdouh & Basem Philipco  
 
Address of Debtor: Nefertari Street Luxor, Egypt 
 
On or before December 1, 2007, we the Debtor shall pay to the order of the Creditor, Sonesta International Hotels Limited, whose address is c/o Sonesta International Hotels 
Corporation, 116 Huntington Avenue, Boston, Massachusetts, U.S.A., by virtue of this promissory note, the sum stated above, which is Three Hundred Thousand United States 
Dollars (U.S. $300,000.00), as we received such value in cash. Payment shall be made at the address of the Creditor and any dispute arising out of this promissory note shall be settled 
by the Cairo courts. 
 
In the event that we do not make full and timely payment, the full outstanding amount shall automatically bear a delay interest of 12% (twelve percent) annually, accruing from the due 
date until the date of full payment, without need for any notice, procedure, or protest. 
 
The Creditor shall have the right to assign this promissory note at its discretion, without need for our consent. Our liability for the amount set forth in this promissory note shall be 
released only after the Creditor, or its assignee, endorses this promissory note to the effect that it has received payment in full and has delivered the original promissory note to us. 
 
  

 
I hereby jointly and severally guarantee the payment of the above-mentioned amount. The Creditor shall have the right to demand payment from me, on a several basis, without need for 
first demanding payment from the Debtor. 

 

     
  Debtor:  Mamdouh & Basem Philipco
 
 

 
 

 
 

Made on December 1, 2006 By:  /s/ Mamdouh Philippe Megalaa
 

Name:  Mamdouh Philippe Megalaa
  Title:    President

     
  Guarantor:  Mamdouh Philippe Megalaa
 
 

 
 

 
 

Made on December 1, 2006:  By:  /s/ Mamdouh Philippe Megalaa
 

Name:  Mamdouh Philippee Megalaa
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TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS:
 
In many ways, 2006 was a transitional year for Sonesta. It was a year in which we watched our two New Orleans hotels struggle to recover from Hurricane Katrina. A year in which we 
closed our Sonesta Beach Resort, in Key Biscayne, in anticipation of the redevelopment of that site. And a year in which we welcomed two new Nile River cruise ships, a second resort 
in St. Maarten, and a hotel in Brasilia, Brazil. 
 
The loss we reported for 2006 of approximately $3,500,000 was due in part to higher depreciation expense. On a cash flow basis, the Company broke even. We recently implemented a 
restructuring of our regional sales offices to reduce our corporate costs. We continue to have ample cash reserves to meet our foreseeable needs.  
 
The closure of Sonesta Key Biscayne, at the end of August, was a bittersweet event. As excited as we are about the new development, it was difficult to say good-bye to our wonderful 
Key Biscayne employees, many of whom had worked at the hotel for many years.  
 
The partnership we formed with Fortune International in 2005 to redevelop the Sonesta Key Biscayne site encountered community resistance to our plans to create a condominium-hotel 
and residences. We have made efforts to address community concerns, including issues pertaining to density, set-backs, height and traffic, and look forward to obtaining the approvals 
we seek. While our first choice is to have a deluxe hotel to operate, most likely a condominium-hotel, we are considering a range of other possibilities for this fabulous site. 
 
Our Royal Sonesta and Chateau Sonesta Hotels, in New Orleans, operated continuously throughout 2006, although Chateau’s restaurant and lobby bar, which suffered damage during 
Katrina, were not restored until later in the year. Hotel business in New Orleans depends heavily on city-wide conventions, and in a normal year the City may host 20 or more. In 2006, 
there were only three city-wide conventions in the City, and half the usual numbers are presently on the books for 2007-2009. 
 
We have entered into agreements to acquire Chateau Sonesta, New Orleans, subject to certain contingencies. As challenging as the current hotel environment is in New Orleans, we 
believe the City will come back, although it may take awhile. We will invest in renovating the Hotel and expect our investment to pay off over the next few years. 
 
Royal Sonesta Boston’s results improved markedly in 2006, and the Hotel seems to be back on track. All guestrooms have been renovated and we recently completed a spectacular new 
lighting feature that illuminates the Hotel’s entrance. A new restaurant at the Hotel, dante, opened last spring and has been enthusiastically received. 
 
As we reported in October, we rescinded the exercise of our option to acquire the hotel operation at Trump Sonesta Resort, in Sunny Isles Beach, Florida. While we continue to operate 
the Hotel, we concluded that, in light of the owner’s unwillingness to complete the purchase transaction with us, we would not realize the benefits from ownership we had envisioned. 
The Hotel operation continued to improve in 2006, and the Hotel received Mobil’s 4-Star rating in November - something we are all proud of. 
 
Sonesta Hotel & Suites Coconut Grove continues to perform well. Guestrooms are being upgraded with new bedding, new dressers and flat-screen televisions. 
 
Our operations in Egypt have been good and our Company enjoys a strong reputation in that country. As mentioned, during 2006 we launched two new Nile River cruise ships. Sonesta 
Star Goddess and Sonesta St. George I are ultra-luxury vessels, among the finest on the Nile. Sonesta now operates six hotels and five cruise ships in Egypt. We continue to explore new 
management opportunities, both in Egypt and elsewhere in the Middle East, and recently signed a contract to operate a hotel being developed in Doha, Qatar that should open in 2008. 
 
Our relationships with the owners and operators of our six (6) licensed/franchised properties in Peru, two (2) in St. Maarten, and two (2) in Brazil continue to be strong. This past fall we 
welcomed Sonesta Great Bay Beach Resort & Casino, in St. Maarten and Sonesta Hotel Brasilia, in Brazil. 
 
Construction of the 900-plus unit condominium-hotel project we agreed to operate in Orlando continues, although we are unable to say with certainty when the first phase will open. 
 
If you would like additional information about The Sonesta Collection of hotels, resorts and cruises, please visit our website at Sonesta.com. We will soon be launching a dynamic new 
website and encourage you, our shareholders, to explore it. 
 
We appreciate your continued interest and support, and that of our hotel owners, guests, partners and employees. 
  
  
/s/ Roger P. Sonnabend            
Roger P. Sonnabend 
Executive Chairman of the Board 
 
  
/s/ Peter J. Sonnabend              
Peter J. Sonnabend 
Chief Executive Officer and Vice Chairman 
 
  
/s/ Stephanie Sonnabend            
Stephanie Sonnabend 
Chief Executive Officer and President 
 
 
 
 
March 13, 2007 



 
SONESTA INTERNATIONAL HOTELS CORPORATION 
5-YEAR SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA 

 
(In thousands except for per share data)

 
(1) see Note 1 in consolidated financial statements. 
Market price data for the Company’s common stock showing high and low prices by quarter for each of the last two years is as follows: 
 

 
The Company’s common stock trades on the NASDAQ Stock Market under the symbol SNSTA. As of February 14, 2007 there were 381 holders of record of the Company’s common 
stock. 
 
A copy of the Company’s Form 10-K Report, which is filed annually with the Securities and Exchange Commission, is available to stockholders. Requests should be sent to the Office of 
the Secretary at the Company’s Executive Office. 

                       

 
   

   2006     2005     2004     2003     2002 
Revenues   $ 77,595  $ 88,125  $ 89,907  $ 84,896  $ 90,131 
Other revenues from managed and affiliated                           
  properties (1)     21,237    14,543    12,727    8,625    2,188 
Total revenues     98,832    102,668    102,634    93,521    92,319 
Operating income (loss)     (3,829)   (1,905)   1,502    (1,191)   2,276 
Net interest expense     (1,441)   (2,836)   (5,860)   (5,836)   (5,799)

Other income        49    4,054    182    630       10 
Loss from continuing operations

before income taxes 
 

  (5,221)   (687)   (4,176)   (6,397)   (3,513)

Income tax provision (benefit)     (1,698)   (5,355)      426       34      (790)

Income (loss) from continuing operations     (3,523)   4,668    (4,602)   (6,431)   (2,723)

Discontinued operations:                           
Loss from operations and sale of  
discontinued hotel 

 
  --     --     --     --     (1,928)

Income tax benefit         --           --          --         --        (655)

Loss from discontinued operations         --          --          --         --     (1,273)

Net income (loss)   $ (3,523) $ 4,668  $ (4,602) $ (6,431) $ (3,996)

                            
Basic and diluted income (loss) per share

of common stock: 
 

                        
Continuing operations   $ (0.95) $ 1.26  $ (1.24) $ (1.74) $ (0.74)

Discontinued operations        --        --        --        --        (0.34)

Net income (loss)   $ (0.95) $ 1.26  $ (1.24) $ (1.74) $ (1.08)

                            
Cash dividends declared   $ 0.20  $ 1.10  $ --   $ 0.05  $ 0.20 
                            
Net property and equipment   $ 38,400  $ 72,799  $ 76,638  $ 80,849  $ 83,171 
Total assets     126,428    130,619    109,537    110,119    118,450 
Long-term debt including currently payable  

portion 
 

  34,061    34,061    69,816    69,311    70,043 
Common stockholders' equity     7,371    11,865    11,264    15,866    22,482 
Common stockholders' equity

per share 
 

  1.99    3.21    3.05    4.29    6.08 
Common shares outstanding at

end of year 
 

  3,698    3,698    3,698    3,698    3,698 

    NASDAQ Quotations  
     
    2006   2005  
       
    High   Low   High   Low  
           
First   $ 26.94  $ 24.35  $ 42.77  $ 6.43 
Second     25.25    13.82    32.25    25.01 
Third     19.99    15.53    31.24    25.05 
Fourth     22.67    15.53    30.01    24.72 
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The following graph compares the annual percentage change in the cumulative total stockholder return on the Company’s Common Stock against the cumulative total return of the 
NASDAQ Stock Market (US Companies) and the NASDAQ Hotels and Motels Index for the five-year period commencing December 31, 2001 and ending December 31, 2006 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL CONDITION

The Company's consolidated financial statements include the revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities of Royal Sonesta Hotel Boston (Cambridge), Royal Sonesta Hotel New Orleans, 
and Sonesta Beach Resort Key Biscayne. The Boston (Cambridge) property is owned by the Company, and the New Orleans hotel is operated under a long-term lease. The land and 
improvements of Sonesta Beach Resort Key Biscayne were transferred in April 2005 to a development partnership, of which the Company is a 50% owner, with the intent to develop the 
site with a new, luxury condominium hotel and residences. The hotel closed on August 31, 2006 (see Note 2 - Operations). The financial statements also include the Company’s 
revenues and expenses from the management of properties in the United States, Bermuda (until May 2004) and Egypt, and license fee income from properties in St. Maarten, Brazil and 
Peru.  

Results of Operations 
During 2006, the Company recorded a net loss of $(3,523,000), or $(0.95) per share, compared to net income of $4,668,000, or $1.26 per share, during 2005. A reconciliation of the 
$8,191,000 reduction in earnings follows (in thousands): 
 
 

 
 

 

 

  

  
In 2007, the Company expects to improve operating results. Royal Sonesta Hotel Boston (Cambridge) expects improved results due to increased demand in the Boston marketplace, 
combined with the effect of improvements to the quality of the hotel, primarily to guestrooms. The Company also expects additional fee income in 2007 from the condominium hotels it 
manages in Coconut Grove and Sunny Isles, Florida, from improved profits at both locations. Royal Sonesta Hotel New Orleans, due to the lack of city-wide conventions, will have a 
challenging year in 2007. At the end of 2006, the Company reduced staff in its regional sales offices, which will result in lower corporate sales and marketing costs in 2007. In addition, 
the Company froze its defined benefit pension plan, and replaced this benefit with a matching contribution under its 401(K) plan, which it expects to result in substantial savings in 
benefit costs. 
 
Revenues 
 
During 2006, the Company began recording costs incurred on behalf of owners of managed and affiliated properties, and expenses reimbursed from managed and affiliated properties, on 
a gross basis, rather than on a net basis, as previously presented (see Note 1). The revenues included and discussed in this Management’s Discussion and Analysis exclude the “other 
revenues and expenses from managed and affiliated properties” resulting from this restatement.  
  
 

Decrease in operating income Royal Sonesta New Orleans   $ (899)

Increase in operating loss Sonesta Key Biscayne     (948)

Increase in operating income Royal Sonesta Boston     1,036 
Increase in loss from management activities     (1,113)

Decrease in net interest expense     1,395 
Gain on land sale in 2005     (3,950)

Tax benefit from the net reduction in income     1,568 
Net impact of non-recurring tax benefits in 2005     (5,227)

Other changes     (53)

Reduction in earnings 2006 compared to 2005   $ (8,191)

·      The decrease in operating income earned from Royal Sonesta Hotel New Orleans of $899,000 resulted from the loss of business, primarily group and convention business, 
following Hurricane Katrina. Sonesta Beach Resort Key Biscayne, which closed on August 31, 2006, recorded an increase in operating losses in 2006 of $948,000, partially 
due to additional depreciation charges related to the closure of the hotel. The loss of operating income from New Orleans and Key Biscayne was partially offset by an 
increase in operating income of $1,036,000 from Royal Sonesta Hotel Boston (Cambridge), where business improved substantially compared to 2005.  

·      Losses from management activities increased by $1,113,000 in 2006 compared to 2005, as a result of reduced fee income, additional costs related to the restructuring of the 
Company’s sales and marketing offices, and additional pension costs following the decision to freeze the Company’s pension plan effective December 31, 2006. 

·      Interest expense decreased by approximately $940,000 resulting primarily from the repayment of the mortgage loan on Sonesta Beach Resort Key Biscayne in April 2005 
(see Note 2 - Operations). Interest income increased by $455,000 due to higher income earned from the short-term investment of cash proceeds received following the 
transfer of Sonesta Beach Resort Key Biscayne’s assets in April 2005 (see Note 2 - Operations). 

·      The 2005 income included a pre-tax gain of $3,950,000 from the sale of land the Company had owned in Costa Rica. 

·      The 2005 net income included a $4,158,000 tax benefit from the reversal of federal and state tax valuation reserves, resulting from the transaction involving the transfer of 
the land and improvements of Sonesta Beach Resort Key Biscayne, as well as a one-time tax reduction of approximately $1,069,000 related to the sale by a foreign 
subsidiary of the Company of land it had owned in Costa Rica (see Note 2 - Operations and Note 10 - Income Taxes). 

    TOTAL REVENUES
(in thousands)

 
     
   
    NO. OF           
    ROOMS   2006  2005  2004 
           
               
Sonesta Beach Resort Key Biscayne     300   $ 19,341  $ 27,395  $ 28,170 
Royal Sonesta Hotel Boston (Cambridge)     400     26,408    23,986    23,279 
Royal Sonesta Hotel New Orleans     500     27,894    32,757    34,051 



  
  
2006 versus 2005: Total revenues, excluding other revenues from managed and affiliated properties, were $77,595,000 in 2006 compared to $88,125,000 in 2005, a decrease of $10,530,000. 
Revenues from Sonesta Beach Resort Key Biscayne, which terminated operations on August 31, 2006, decreased by $8,054,000 in 2006 compared to 2005. The Company intends to 
redevelop this site, together with a partner, as a new condominium hotel and residences. Revenues from Royal Sonesta Hotel New Orleans decreased by $4,863,000 in 2006  
  

Management and service fees and other revenues            3,952       3,987       4,407 
Total revenues, excluding other revenues from managed and affiliated 

properties
       $ 77,595  $ 88,125  $ 89,907 
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compared to 2005 as a result of the impact on business of Hurricane Katrina, which struck New Orleans in August 2005. Revenues of Royal Sonesta Hotel Boston (Cambridge) increased 
by $2,422,000 in 2006 to a total of $26,408,000. A more detailed analysis of the revenues by hotel, and of our management income, follows. 
 
Revenues at Sonesta Beach Resort Key Biscayne decreased by $8,054,000 in 2006 compared to 2005. The Key Biscayne Resort closed for business on August 31, 2006, as previously 
planned. A new partnership, in which the Company is a 50% partner, intends to redevelop the hotel site with a new condominium hotel and residences (see Note 2 - Operations). Of the 
decrease in revenues of $8,054,000, $6,775,000 was due to the fact that the hotel was not operating after August 31, 2006. During the eight month period ending August 31, 2006, the 
hotel’s total revenues were $1,219,000 lower than in the same eight month period in 2005. Room revenues achieved during this period were virtually the same as in the same period in 
2005, but revenues from food and beverage and other sources decreased, mainly due to the loss of banquet business. 
 
Royal Sonesta Hotel Boston (Cambridge) recorded 2006 revenues of $26,408,000, compared to $23,986,000 in 2005, representing an increase of $2,422,000, or 10%. Increased room 
revenues accounted for $1,834,000 of the total revenue increase. Room revenue per available room (“REVPAR”) increased by 12% in 2006 compared to 2005. Occupancy remained 
virtually the same, but the hotel managed to increase its average room rate substantially. Revenues from other sources increased by $588,000, primarily because of increased food and 
beverage revenues. Hotels in Boston, in general, experienced increased business levels in 2006 compared to last year. 
Business in New Orleans, following Hurricane Katrina, continues to be soft, primarily from the decrease in group and convention business. Revenues at Royal Sonesta Hotel New 
Orleans in 2006 were $27,894,000, compared to $32,757,000 in 2005, a decrease of $4,863,000. Since the hotel suffered little damage from Katrina in August 2005, it managed to capture a 
substantial amount of rooms business from government sources related to the relief efforts during the period September 2005 through March 2006. However, starting in April 2006, the 
hotel’s occupancy and average rate declined substantially compared to the year before, primarily because of the lack of city-wide convention business and group business for the hotel. 
Of the revenue decrease of $4,863,000, $4,483,000 was due to decreased room revenues. The hotel’s REVPAR decreased by 23% in 2006 compared to 2005, due to a sharp decline in 
occupancy and a reduction in average room rate. The biggest decline was in group and convention business, which lowered the 2006 occupancy, and also put pressure on average 
rates for transient business. 
Revenues from management activities decreased slightly from $3,987,000 in 2005 to $3,952,000 in 2006. Decreased fee income from Chateau Sonesta Hotel New Orleans, which also 
suffered from the after-effects of Hurricane Katrina, and lower fee income from the Company’s managed hotels in Egypt, were partially offset by increased fee income from Sonesta Hotel 
& Suites Coconut Grove, increased fee income from the Company’s licensed hotels in St. Maarten and Brazil, and by increased income from Corporate services including training and 
purchasing. 
 
2005 versus 2004: Revenues in 2005, excluding revenues from managed and affiliated properties, were $88,125,000 compared to $89,907,000 in 2004, a decrease of $1,782,000. Revenues 
at Royal Sonesta Hotel New Orleans decreased by $1,294,000 as a result of the impact of Hurricane Katrina, which struck New Orleans on August 29, 2005. Sonesta Beach Resort Key 
Biscayne also experienced a decrease in 2005 revenues of $775,000 compared to 2004. This was mainly due to Hurricane Wilma, which affected business in October 2005. A more 
detailed analysis of the revenues by hotel, and of our management income, follows. 
 
Revenues of Sonesta Beach Resort Key Biscayne decreased by $775,000, or 3%, during 2005 compared to 2004. Room revenues decreased by $151,000 due to a slight (1%) decrease in 
room revenue per available room (“REVPAR”). Occupancy decreased in 2005, mainly as a result of hurricane activity, especially in October, when Hurricane Wilma caused the closure of 
the hotel for a week. Revenues from other sources, including food and beverage, decreased by $623,000, or 5%, in 2005, compared to 2004. This was due to the overall decrease in 
occupancy, and a decrease in room nights generated from the group and convention market segment, which affected banqueting revenues.  
Royal Sonesta Hotel Boston (Cambridge) increased revenues from $23,279,000 in 2004 to $23,986,000 in 2005, a $707,000 increase. This was entirely due to an increase in room revenues 
resulting from a 5% REVPAR increase mostly due to higher average room rates achieved. Occupancy in 2005 remained virtually the same compared to 2004.  
Total revenues at Royal Sonesta Hotel New Orleans during 2005 were $32,757,000 compared to $34,051,000 in 2004, a $1,294,000 decrease. Business in New Orleans was seriously 
affected by the impact of Hurricane Katrina, which struck on August 29, 2005. Total revenues during the month of September 2005 were $1,350,000 lower compared to September 2004, 
which erased the increase in revenues achieved during the first eight months of 2005. During the fourth quarter of 2005, revenues were $1,122,000 lower than during the 2004 fourth 
quarter, due to reduced revenues primarily from food and beverage sales, since not all of the hotel’s food and beverage outlets were in operation, and due to the absence of group and 
convention business, which usually generates substantial banqueting revenues. Room revenues during the 2005 fourth quarter actually increased compared to 2004. Because the hotel 
had only minor damage it was able to capture substantial government business, and other business related to the recovery and rebuilding efforts in New Orleans. 
 
Revenues from management activities decreased from $4,407,000 in 2004 to $3,987,000 in 2005, a $420,000 decrease. This was mainly due to a decrease in management income from 
Chateau Sonesta Hotel New Orleans. That hotel was closed from August 29 to November 30, 2005 to repair damage sustained from Hurricane Katrina. Increased license fee income from 
Sonesta Maho Beach Resort & Casino, St Maarten, which was added during the summer of 2004, was offset by decreased fee income from Sonesta Beach Resort Bermuda, which 
management agreement ended in 2004.  
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Operating Income

2006 versus 2005: The Company recorded a 2006 operating loss of $3,829,000, compared to a loss of $1,905,000 in 2005, representing an increased loss of $1,924,000. Sonesta Beach 
Resort Key Biscayne, which closed for operations on August 31, 2006 recorded an increase in operating losses of $948,000, primarily due to higher depreciation charges. Royal Sonesta 
Hotel New Orleans reported lower operating income as a result of the continuing impact on business of Hurricane Katrina, which struck New Orleans in August 2005. Royal Sonesta 
Hotel Boston (Cambridge) increased its operating income from $1,380,000 in 2005 to $2,416,000 in 2006. Losses from management activities increased to $5,622,000 in 2006, from 
$4,509,000 in 2005. A detailed discussion of the changes in operating income by location follows.

Sonesta Beach Resort Key Biscayne, which closed on August 31, 2006 (see Note 2 - Operations), recorded an operating loss of $1,073,000 during 2006 compared to an operating loss of 
$125,000 in 2005. Revenues in 2006 were $8,054,000 less than in 2005, due to the closure at the end of August 2006. Expenses decreased by $7,106,000. Depreciation expense for the eight 
month period ending August 31, 2006 increased by $577,000 compared to the full year’s depreciation expense in 2005, resulting from additional depreciation charges from the revision of 
the useful lives, starting in the 2005 fourth quarter, of certain furniture, fixtures and equipment that was used in connection with the operation of the hotel. The additional depreciation 
charges amounted to $2.5 million in 2006, and $675,000 during the 2005 fourth quarter. Even though the Sonesta Beach Resort Key Biscayne recorded operating losses of $125,000 and 
$1,073,000 during 2005 and 2006, respectively, the hotel contributed substantially to the Company’s cash flow. Depreciation expense during 2005 and 2006 totaled $7,364,000, and the 
hotel had minimal capital expenditures due to the anticipated closing. In addition, the hotel’s mortgage loan was repaid in April 2005 (see Note 2 - Operations), so no interest expense 
was incurred from that time on. 
Operating income at Royal Sonesta Hotel Boston (Cambridge) increased from $1,380,000 in 2005 to $2,416,000 in 2006, an increase of $1,036,000. Revenues increased by $2,422,000 in 
2006, and expenses rose by $1,386,000. The expense increase was mainly due to increased costs and operating expenses, which included a substantial increase in energy costs, 
increased sales and marketing expense, and an increase in human resources expense due to the cost of recruiting and relocating a new General Manager for the Hotel. Depreciation 
expense also increased as a result of extensive refurbishments of the hotel’s guestrooms and other facilities during recent years.  
Royal Sonesta Hotel New Orleans reported operating income of $450,000 in 2006 compared to $1,349,000 in 2005, a decrease of $899,000. Revenues decreased by $4,863,000 in 2006 
compared to 2005, but expenses decreased by $3,964,000. The expense decrease was primarily due to a $3,273,000 decrease in rent due under the lease under which the Company 
operates the hotel. Rent is computed as a percentage of cash flow. Expenses other than rent decreased by $691,000, which included lower administrative and general expenses, and 
lower costs and operating expenses. 
The Company’s loss from management activities, which is computed after giving effect to management and marketing fees from owned and leased hotels, increased from $4,509,000 in 
2005 to $5,622,000 in 2006. Revenues from management activities decreased by $537,000 ($35,000 from managed hotels and $502,000 from owned hotels, of which $368,000 was due to the 
closure of Key Biscayne), and expenses increased by $576,000. The expense increases included $415,000 in additional pension costs related to the decision to freeze the Company’s 
pension plan at December 31, 2006 (see Note 7 - Pension and Benefit Plans) and $351,000 in severance expenses related to a restructuring of the Company’s regional sales offices. 

2005 versus 2004: The Company recorded an operating loss of $1,905,000 in 2005, compared to operating income of $1,502,000 in 2004, a decrease of $3,407,000. The decline in income 
was primarily from a decrease in income of $1,678,000 at Sonesta Beach Resort Key Biscayne and an increase in the loss from management activities of $1,685,000. In Key Biscayne, 
revenues declined by $775,000, and expenses rose $903,000. Revenues from management activities decreased by $420,000, and corporate expenses related to these activities increased 
by $1,265,000. A detailed discussion of the changes in income by location, which includes an analysis of the increased expenses, follows. 

Sonesta Beach Resort Key Biscayne recorded an operating loss of $125,000 during 2005 compared to operating income of $1,553,000 in 2004, a decrease of $1,678,000. Revenues 
decreased by $775,000 during 2005 compared to 2004, and overall expenses increased by $903,000. Revenues declined primarily due to increased hurricane activity in 2005. In October 
2005, the hotel was closed for a week following Hurricane Wilma. Expenses increased due to increased costs and operating expenses ($360,000), due in part to higher cost of utilities, 
increased real estate taxes ($142,000) and higher repairs and maintenance expenses ($306,000). The hotel also recorded an increase in depreciation expense of $300,000. The net increase 
in depreciation expense resulted from the revision of useful lives in the 2005 fourth quarter of certain furniture and equipment at Sonesta Beach Key Biscayne, following a decision to 
cease operations of the hotel in August 2006. This furniture and equipment was excluded from the transfer of the land and improvements of the hotel to a new development partnership 
(see Note 2 - Operations). The above expense increases were partially offset by lower administrative and general expenses, primarily from lower insurance expense, since the obligation 
to insure the building had been assumed by the partnership into which the hotel assets were transferred in April 2005 (see Note 2 - Operations). Even though the Key Biscayne hotel 
reported a $125,000 operating loss in 2005, the hotel contributed significantly to the Company’s cash flow. The hotel’s depreciation expense totaled $3,393,000 in 2005, and expenditures 
for capital replacements were minimal due to the planned closure of the hotel. In addition, no interest expense was incurred since April 2005, when the hotel’s mortgage was repaid. 
Royal Sonesta Hotel Boston (Cambridge) reported operating income of $1,380,000 during 2005, compared to $1,450,000 in 2004, a $70,000 decrease. Revenues in 2005 increased by 
$707,000 

    OPERATING INCOME/(LOSS)
(in thousands)

 
     
   
    2006  2005  2004 
         
               
Sonesta Beach Resort Key Biscayne   $ (1,073) $ (125) $ 1,553 
Royal Sonesta Hotel Boston (Cambridge)     2,416    1,380    1,450 
Royal Sonesta Hotel New Orleans         450       1,349      1,323 
Operating income from hotels after 

management and service fees 
 

  1,793    2,604    4,326 
Management activities and other income        (5,622)     (4,509)     (2,824)

Operating loss   $ (3,829) $ (1,905) $ 1,502 
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but expenses increased by $777,000, representing a 3.5% increase compared to 2004. The expense increase was almost entirely due to increased costs and operating expenses, resulting 
from increased payroll and employee benefit costs, as well as increased expenses for supplies and operating equipment in both the rooms and food and beverage departments. The 
hotel also increased its advertising efforts, especially on the internet. 
Operating income in 2005 at Royal Sonesta Hotel New Orleans was $1,349,000 compared to $1,323,000 in 2004, a slight $26,000 increase. Total revenues in 2005 were $1,294,000 lower 
than in 2004, due to the effect of Hurricane Katrina on the hotel’s business in 2005, but overall expenses decreased by $1,320,000 in 2005 compared to 2004. This was primarily due to 
lower costs and operating expenses and repairs and maintenance costs. After Hurricane Katrina, a significant number of the hotel’s employees were unable to return, which forced the 
hotel to operate without all food and beverage facilities, and with limited services. The resulting decrease in payroll and other expenses offset the decrease in revenues, and increased 
costs directly related to the storm of approximately $635,000, which included rentals of emergency generators, spoiled inventories, and incentives for employees that secured and 
operated the hotel during the period immediately following the hurricane. 
The Company’s loss from management activities, which is computed after giving effect to management and marketing fees from owned and leased hotels, increased from $2,824,000 in 
2004 to $4,509,000 in 2005. Management revenues decreased by $420,000, and expenses related to these activities increased by $1,265,000. This increase in expenses was mainly due to 
an increase in administrative and general expenses.
This resulted from the addition of a Vice President of Development to the corporate staff, and by increases in employee benefit costs, including health and pension benefits. In addition, 
the Company recorded an expense of $393,000 in 2005 resulting from a shortfall in achieving the minimum owners’ return which the Company is committed to under its management 
agreement for Trump International Sonesta Beach Resort Sunny Isles. Finally, also included in 2005 is a $263,000 expense, since the Company cured a shortfall in achieving a 
performance threshold for the calendar year 2005 under the management agreement for Sonesta Hotel & Suites Coconut Grove in 2006. The hotel’s owner had the right to cancel the 
management agreement, if the Company had declined to cure the 2005 shortfall.

Other Income and Deductions

 
Interest expense decreased by $940,000 during 2006 compared to 2005, and by $2,284,000 during 2005 compared to 2004. This was due to the repayment of the mortgage loan on Sonesta 
Beach Resort Key Biscayne, and the reduction of the principal balance of the mortgage loan on Royal Sonesta Hotel Boston (Cambridge) in April 2005 in connection with a transaction 
to redevelop the Key Biscayne hotel site (see Note 2 - Operations and Note 4 - Borrowing Arrangements).  

Interest income increased from $389,000 in 2004 to $1,129,000 in 2005, and to $1,584,000 in 2006. This was primarily due to an increase in short-term investment income on the Company’s 
cash balances. In April 2005, the Company received net cash of approximately $24.4 million following the transfer of the land and improvements of Sonesta Beach Resort Key Biscayne 
to a partnership in which the Company is a 50% limited partner (see Note 2 - Operations).   

The 2005 gain on sale of $4,082,000 included a $3,950,000 gain on the sale of land the Company had owned since 1995 in Costa Rica. The site was intended for a new resort to be 
operated by the Company, but the development never materialized. The remaining gain in 2005 resulted primarily from the sale of a non-essential asset in Tuscany, Italy.  

Federal, State and Foreign Income Taxes

In 2006, the Company recorded a net tax benefit of $1,698,000 on its pre-tax loss of $5,221,000. The 2006 tax benefit is lower than the statutory rate primarily because of foreign taxes paid 
on income from the Company’s managed hotels in Egypt and licensed hotels in Peru, which were only partially offset by work opportunity tax credits received in New Orleans related to 
Hurricane Katrina.

The Company recorded a net tax benefit of $5,355,000 during 2005, despite its pre-tax loss of $687,000, primarily as a result of the following: 

In 2004, the Company recorded a tax expense of $426,000 despite its pre-tax loss of approximately $4.2 million. A valuation allowance was recorded against the 2004 federal income tax 
benefit since it was uncertain if the Company would realize a future benefit for the losses incurred during that year. Also in 2004, the Company provided for state taxes on its income 
from Royal Sonesta Hotel New Orleans, and foreign taxes primarily on the Company’s management income from its Egyptian operations. 

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Company had cash and cash equivalents of approximately $25 million at December 31, 2006. 
 
Capital expenditures of $6,283,000 during 2006 included $4,042,000 for expenditures at Royal Sonesta Hotel Boston (Cambridge). The hotel’s capital expenditures for 2006 included major 
guestroom renovations and the creation of a new restaurant. 
 
The Company contributed $2,440,000 and $2,188,000 to its Pension Plan in 2006 and 2005, respectively. No contribution was made in 2004. 
 
Chateau Sonesta Hotel New Orleans, which the Company operates under a long-term management agreement, was closed from August 29 to November 30, 2005 due to damages 
sustained from Hurricane Katrina. The hotel’s owner notified the Company that it would only pay for losses, and for repairs, to the extent of available insurance proceeds. As a result, 
the Company advanced $1,025,000 in 2005 and  

·      During 2003 and 2004, the Company recorded valuation allowances totaling $3,862,000 against the federal income tax benefits on its pre-tax losses of approximately $10.6 
million incurred during these two years, since it was uncertain if the Company could realize a future benefit for these losses. In addition, valuation allowances of $296,000 were 
recorded against Florida state tax loss carry forwards, for the same reason. In April 2005, the Company completed a transaction involving the transfer of the land and 
improvements of Sonesta Beach Resort Key Biscayne (see Note 2 - Operations). This transaction resulted in significant taxable income, and the Company therefore reversed in 
2005 the valuation allowances previously recorded, since it received a benefit in 2005 for the prior years’ losses. 

·      In 2005, a foreign subsidiary of the Company sold land it had owned in Costa Rica, and recorded a pre-tax gain of $3,950,000. The foreign subsidiary remitted the proceeds to 
the parent company, and in accordance with IRS Code Section 965(a) of the American Job Creations Act of 2004, the Company was able to receive a “temporary dividends 
received deduction” of approximately $3.1 million, resulting in tax savings of approximately $1.1 million. 
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an additional $870,000 in early 2006 to cover operating expenses and to pay for repairs necessary to reopen the hotel on December 1, 2005. Insurance proceeds received by the owner 
have been used to fund certain repairs, but the majority of the funds have been used to fund monthly payments on the hotel’s first mortgage loan. In February 2007, insurance proceeds 
were fully utilized, and after a debt service payment due February 1, 2007 was not paid, the lender declared a default. After extended negotiations, the Company and the hotel’s owner 
signed a purchase and sale agreement in late February 2007. Under this agreement, the Company committed to acquire the hotel in return for the aforementioned advances 
(approximately $1.9 million) and by assuming the hotel’s first mortgage loan (approximately $13.6 million) and outstanding obligations for hotel repairs and overdue rents and taxes due 
to the City of New Orleans (approximately $2.2 million). The hotel is subject to a ground lease, which the Company will assume. The purchase and sale agreement has certain 
contingencies, including the approval by a limited partner of the seller.  
 
The Company operates the Sonesta Hotel & Suites Coconut Grove, in Miami, which is a condominium hotel that opened in April 2002. Under its agreements, the Company is committed 
to fund net operating losses, and to provide the hotel’s owner with a minimum annual return of $500,000, adjusted annually by increases in the Consumer Price Index, starting January 1, 
2004. Starting in 2005, the management agreement can be terminated by the hotel’s owner if the Company fails to cure shortfalls against a minimum target return of $1,000,000, adjusted 
annually by increases in the CPI. From April 2002 through December 2005, the Company contributed and expensed $2,067,000 for operating losses, shortfalls against the minimum 
owners return for 2004, and shortfalls against the minimum target return for 2005. The hotel’s 2006 net operating profit, before the Company’s fee income earned under the management 
agreement, was sufficient to cover the owner’s target return.  
 
The Company operates the Trump International Sonesta Beach Resort, a condominium hotel in Sunny Isles, Florida. This hotel opened in April 2003. The Company contributed to the 
cost of the hotel’s non-guestroom furniture, fixtures and equipment, and has recorded an investment of $2,268,000 for same. The Company also guarantees an equipment lease in the 
original amount of $1,000,000. Additionally, the Company advanced $2,328,000 for pre-opening expenses, which amount was repaid in January 2006. Under its management agreement, 
the Company was obligated to fund 50% of the hotel’s losses from the opening through November 1, 2004. After this date, the Company is obligated to pay the owner a minimum annual 
return of $800,000. The Company advanced $1,391,000 for losses through November 1, 2004, which amount is included in long-term receivables and advances. In 2005, the Company 
recorded an expense of $393,000 for a shortfall incurred against the minimum return during the period November 1, 2004 through December 31, 2005. In 2006, the hotel’s net operating 
profit was sufficient to cover the owner’s minimum return, and pay the  
Company approximately $256,000. The Company utilized this payment to reduce the aforementioned advance for losses. 
 
In April 2005 the Company received net cash of approximately $24.4 million related to the transfer of the land and improvements of the Sonesta Beach Resort Key Biscayne to a 
partnership in which the Company is a 50% limited partner. In connection with the same transaction, a $29,967,000 mortgage loan secured by the assets of Sonesta Beach Resort Key 
Biscayne was repaid, and the Company paid $5,572,000 which reduced the principal balance of a loan secured by the Royal Sonesta Hotel Boston (Cambridge) to $34,061,000. Income tax 
payments of $6,732,000 made during 2005 included taxes due on taxable income from the transfer of the Sonesta Beach Resort Key Biscayne assets. The Company continued to operate 
the hotel from April 2005 through August 2006. During this time, all income and expenses of the hotel were reflected in its statement of operations, and the net proceeds received of 
$59,728,000 in April 2005 were recorded as a finance obligation, since the transaction did not qualify for recognition as a sale, due to the Company’s continuing involvement. In August 
2006, after the hotel closed, the Company removed the remaining assets of the hotel from its balance sheet, and recorded an investment for its 50% equity ownership in the development 
partnership. Based on the partnership agreement, the Company started receiving monthly payments of $125,000 from the development partnership following the hotel’s closure, which 
payments reduce the aforementioned investment account. 
 
In September 2005 the Company sold land it owned in Costa Rica for $4.5 million, and reported a $3,950,000 pre-tax gain after deducting the $450,000 book value of the land and related 
expenses. 
 
In June 2005 the Company paid a special dividend of $1.00 per share for a total amount of $3,698,000. 
 
Company management believes that its present cash balances will be more than adequate to meet its cash requirements for 2006 and for the foreseeable future. 
 
As of December 31, 2006, the Company’s fixed contractual obligations were as follows: 
 

 
The Company’s hotels also have certain purchase obligations, primarily for maintenance and service contracts. These are not included in the contractual obligations since the amounts 
committed are not material, and because the majority of these contracts may be terminated on relatively short notice. 
 

    YEAR        
                     

    2007  2008  2009  2010  2011  Thereafter  Total 
                        
Long-Term Debt Obligations   $ --   $ 602  $ 665  $ 32,794  $ --   $ --   $ 34,061 

Operating Leases     684    640    632    634    637    343    3,570 

Total   $ 684  $ 1,242  $ 1,297  $ 33,428  $ 637  $ 343  $ 37,631 
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates 

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, which require the Company to make estimates and 
assumptions. The Company believes that of its significant accounting policies, the following may involve a higher degree of judgment and complexity. 

 

 

 

·      Revenue recognition - a substantial portion of our revenues result from the operations of our owned and leased hotels. These revenues are recognized at the time that lodging 
and other hotel services are provided to our guests. Certain revenues, principally those relating to groups using lodging and banquet facilities, are billed directly to the 
customers. These revenues are subject to credit risk, which the Company manages by establishing allowances for uncollectible accounts. If management establishes 
allowances for uncollectible accounts that are insufficient, it will overstate income, and this will result in increases in allowances for uncollectible accounts in future periods. 
  
Management, license and service fees represents fee income from hotels operated under management agreements, and license fees from hotels to which the Company has 
licensed the use of the “Sonesta” name. Management fees include base fees and marketing fees, which are generally based on a percentage of gross revenues, and incentive 
fees, which are generally based on the hotels’ profitability. These fees are typically based on revenues and income achieved during each calendar year. Incentive fees, and 
management fees of which the receipt is based on annual profits achieved, are recognized throughout the year on a quarterly basis based on profits achieved during the 
interim periods when our agreements provide for quarterly payments during the calendar years they are earned, and when such incentive fee income would be due if the 
management agreements were terminated. As a result, during quarterly periods, fee income may not be indicative of eventual income recognized at the end of each calendar 
year due to changes in business conditions and profitability. License fees are earned based on a percentage of room revenues of the hotels. 
  
During 2006, the Company started recording the reimbursement of certain expenses incurred on behalf of managed and affiliated properties, and the costs incurred on behalf of 
owners of managed properties on a “gross” basis in revenues and costs. These costs relate primarily to payroll and benefit costs of managed properties in which the Company 
is the employer (see also Note 1 to consolidated financial statements). 

·      Impairment of long lived assets - the Company monitors the carrying value of its owned properties from the perspective of accounting rules relating to impairment. A 
requirement to assess impairment would be triggered by so called “impairment indicators”. For us, these might include low rates of occupancy, operating costs in excess of 
revenues, or maturing mortgages for which there were no suitable refinancing options. Impairment also needs to be considered with respect to costs incurred for new hotel 
investments or development opportunities that are under study. The Company monitors these costs on a quarterly basis and if a pending project is no longer considered to be 
viable, the cost is charged against income. If the Company estimates incorrectly or misjudges the impairment indicators, it may result in the Company failing to record an 
impairment charge, or recording a charge which may be inaccurate. 

·      Pension Benefits - the Company maintains a defined benefit plan for eligible employees, which was frozen effective December 31, 2006. Costs and liabilities are developed from 
actuarial valuations. In these valuations are assumptions relating to discount rates, expected return on assets, employee turnover, and future wage increases. Differences 
between assumed amounts and actual performance will impact reported amounts for the Company’s pension expense, as well as the liability for future pension benefits. 
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·      Sonesta Hotel & Suites Coconut Grove - the Company operates a condominium hotel under a management agreement, under which it is committed to fund net operating 
losses, and provide the owner with minimum annual returns of $500,000, adjusted annually by increases in the Consumer Price Index, beginning as of January 1, 2004. In 
addition, the management agreement may be subject to termination if the Company elects not to cure shortfalls against a minimum target return of $1,000,000, adjusted annually 
by increases in the Consumer Price Index, starting January 1, 2005. Under its agreements, the Company is entitled to management and marketing fees based on revenues, and 
incentive fees based on profits. In case the aforementioned annual minimum returns and minimum target returns are not met, the Company’s policy is to eliminate management 
and marketing fees from its revenues. If the amount of the shortfall exceeds the fee income, the Company will book the additional amount as an administrative and general 
expense. Amounts advanced for seasonal losses and for working capital (which the Company is obligated to provide) are included in current assets on the Company’s balance 
sheets. 

·      Trump International Sonesta Beach Resort - the Company operates a condominium hotel in Sunny Isles Beach, Florida, which opened in April 2003. Under the management 
agreement, the Company is entitled to management and marketing fees based on the hotel’s revenues, and incentive fees based on the hotel’s net operating income. The 
Company is obligated to advance funds to provide a minimum annual return of $800,000 to the hotel’s owner, starting as of November 1, 2004. From the opening in April 2003 
until November 1, 2004, the Company was obligated to advance 50% of any net operating losses. Amounts advanced under these obligations are subject to repayment, 
without interest, out of future profits in excess of the aforementioned minimum return. If the minimum returns are not earned, the Company will eliminate the fee income earned 
from the property from its revenues. If the amounts of the shortfalls exceed the total fee income, the Company will reflect such excess amounts either as long-term receivables 
and advances on its balance sheet, or will record an expense equal to the amount advanced. The Company has invested in the furniture, fixtures and equipment of the non-
guestroom areas of the hotel, an amount of $2,268,000. This is recorded as another long-term asset, and is being amortized over the 10-year initial term of the management 
agreement. Management continually assesses the realizability of its long-term assets and receivables and has concluded there is no impairment at December 31, 2006. 

·      Accounting for 2005 Asset Transfer - in April 2005, the Company completed the transfer of the land and improvements of Sonesta Beach Key Biscayne to a development 
partnership, of which the Company is a 50% partner. At that time, the Company received non-refundable proceeds of approximately $60 million, and is entitled to a priority 
return of an additional $60 million from the sale of condominium units in a new resort to be constructed on the site. This transaction is expected to ultimately result in a 
substantial gain. Since the Company continued to operate the existing hotel until August 2006, and will have a continuing involvement in the ownership and operation of the 
new resort to be constructed, this gain is being deferred. A comprehensive description of this transaction is included in Note 2 - Operations. 
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Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure of Market Risk

 
The Company is exposed to market risk from changes in interest rates. The Company uses fixed rate debt to finance the ownership of its properties. The table that follows summarizes 
the Company’s fixed rate debt obligations outstanding at December 31, 2006, and presents the fair value of the debt based on current prevailing interest rates for similar financing. This 
information should be read in conjunction with Note 4— Borrowing Arrangements. 
 
Short and Long Term Debt (in thousands) maturing in: 

Selected Quarterly Financial Data

Following are selected quarterly financial information for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005. 

 

 

 

    YEAR           
    2007  2008  2009  2010  Thereafter  Total  Fair Value 
Fixed rate   $ --   $ 602  $ 665  $ 32,794  $ --   $ 34,061  $ 35,344 
Average interest rate     8.6%  8.6%  8.6%  8.6%              

    (in thousands except for per share data)  
    2006  
     
    1st   2nd   3rd   4th  
           
Revenues   $ 23,938  $ 22,839  $ 15,618  $ 15,200 
Other revenues from managed and                      

affiliated properties     4,312    4,324    8,175    4,426 
Total revenues     28,250    27,163    23,793    19,626 
Operating income (loss)     591    115    (3,104)   (1,431)

Net income (loss)     10    (233)   (2,196)   (1,104)

Net income (loss) per share   $ 0.003  $ (0.06) $ (0.59) $ (0.30)

     

    2005  
     
    1st   2nd   3rd   4th  
           
Revenues   $ 25,128  $ 25,900  $ 16,225  $ 20,872 
Other revenues from managed and                      

affiliated properties     3,696    3,662    3,502    3,683 
Total revenues     28,824    29,562    19,727    24,555 
Operating income (loss)     1,349    2,049    (3,320)   (1,983)

Net income (loss)     4,103    893    1,570    (1,898)

Net income (loss) per share   $ 1.11  $ 0.24  $ 0.42  $ (0.51)
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Fourth Quarter Results 

Revenues

Total revenues, excluding other revenues from managed and affiliated properties, during the fourth quarter of 2006 were $15,200,000 compared to $20,872,000 during the 2005 fourth 
quarter, a decrease of $5,672,000. This reduction was entirely caused by a reduction in revenues from Sonesta Beach Resort Key Biscayne of $5,889,000. 

The Key Biscayne resort closed for business on August 31, 2006. In April 2005, the Company transferred the land and improvements to a new development partnership in which the 
Company is a 50% limited partner, with the intent to redevelop the site as a new condominium resort and residences (see Note 2 - Operations). Revenues during the 2006 fourth quarter 
at Royal Sonesta Hotel Boston (Cambridge) increased by $499,000, or 8%, to $6,953,000. This was primarily due to a $421,000 increase in room revenues from an 11% increase in room 
revenues per available room (“REVPAR”).  
Royal Sonesta Hotel New Orleans reported fourth quarter 2006 revenues of $7,392,000, a $556,000 decrease compared to 2005 fourth quarter revenues of $7,948,000. Since the hotel 
suffered only minor damage from Hurricane Katrina, which struck in August 2005, the hotel captured substantial government business related to the recovery and rebuilding efforts in 
New Orleans during the 2005 fourth quarter. This business was not available in the 2006 fourth quarter. 
Revenues from management activities were $855,000 during the 2006 fourth quarter versus $581,000 during the 2005 fourth quarter, an increase of $274,000. This was primarily due to 
income earned from Sonesta Hotel & Suites Coconut Grove, and an increase in corporate income from training and purchasing services provided to the Company’s managed hotels and 
third party clients.

Operating Income

 

 
 
The Company’s operating loss decreased from $1,983,000 during the 2005 fourth quarter to $1,431,000 during the 2006 fourth quarter. 

Sonesta Beach Resort Key Biscayne, which closed for business on August 31, 2006 (see Note 2 - Operations), reported an operating loss of $1,319,000 during the fourth quarter of 2005. 
Despite this operating loss of $1,319,000 during the 2005 fourth quarter, the hotel contributed to the Company’s cash flow. Included in expenses was $1,352,000 in depreciation charges. 
In addition, the hotel had minimal capital expenditures and no interest expense since the mortgage loan was repaid in April 2005, when the property was transferred to a new 
development partnership (see Note 2 - Operations). 
Royal Sonesta Hotel Boston (Cambridge) reported operating income of $1,099,000 in the fourth quarter of 2006 compared to $743,000 in the 2005 fourth quarter, an increase of $356,000. 
Revenues during the 2006 fourth quarter rose $499,000, and overall expenses increased by $143,000, which represented only a 3% increase.  
Royal Sonesta Hotel New Orleans recorded an operating loss of $361,000 during the 2006 fourth quarter, compared to operating income of $629,000 in the fourth quarter of 2005, a 
$990,000 decrease. Revenues during the 2006 fourth quarter were $556,000 less than in the 2005 fourth quarter, and expenses increased by $434,000. During the 2005 fourth quarter, 
immediately after Hurricane Katrina, the hotel capitalized on government business related to the relief efforts in New Orleans which consisted mostly of highly profitable rooms 
business. Since many of the hotel’s staff was displaced by the hurricane, the hotel operated without a number of its food and beverage outlets, thus saving substantial operating costs. 
The hotel’s room revenue per available room (“REVPAR”) was actually 31% less in the 2006 fourth quarter compared to 2005, due to much lower occupancy and a lower average rate. In 
the fourth quarter of 2006, the hotel had to compete for limited business with many other hotels that reopened after the storm. Group and convention travel to New Orleans is still at 
much lower levels than before Hurricane Katrina. 
The Company’s operating loss from management activities, which is computed after giving effect to management and marketing fees from owned and leased hotels, increased from 
$2,036,000 during the 2005 fourth quarter to $2,169,000 in the 2006 fourth quarter. Income increased by $274,000, but expenses rose by $407,000 in the fourth quarter of 2006 compared to 
last year. The increase in costs was in part due to severance expenses related to the restructuring of the Company’s regional sales offices, as well as an increase in the pension expense 
for 2006 following the Company’s decision to freeze its defined benefit pension plan effective December 31, 2006. 

  TOTAL REVENUES
(in thousands) 

  NO. OF    
  ROOMS 2006 2005

 
       
Sonesta Beach Resort Key Biscayne 300 $ -- $5,889

Royal Sonesta Hotel Boston (Cambridge) 400 6,953 6,454
Royal Sonesta Hotel New Orleans 500 7,392 7,948
Management and service fees and other revenues   855 581

●   Total revenues, excluding other revenues from managed and affiliated properties   $15,200 $20,872

    OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)
(in thousands)

 
     
   
    2006  2005 
       
             
Sonesta Beach Resort Key Biscayne   $ --   $ (1,319)

Royal Sonesta Hotel Boston (Cambridge)     1,099    743 
Royal Sonesta Hotel New Orleans     (361)   629 
Operating income from hotels after 

management and service fees 
 

  738    53 
Management activities and other income     (2,169)   (2,036)

Operating loss   $ (1,431) $ (1,983)
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SONESTA INTERNATIONAL HOTELS CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

For each of the three years ended December 31, 2006
(in thousands except for per share data)

(1) As restated for 2005 and 2004, see Note 1 
 
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

    2006  2005  2004 
Revenues:           

Rooms   $ 45,812  $ 52,082  $ 51,291 
Food and beverage     20,515    23,792    25,602 
Management, license and service fees     3,847    3,890    4,319 
Parking, telephone and other     7,421    8,361    8,695 

      77,595    88,125    89,907 
Other revenues from managed and affiliated properties (1)     21,237    14,543    12,727 

Total revenues (1)     98,832    102,668    102,634 
                  
Costs and expenses:                 

Costs and operating expenses     37,777    41,022    40,923 
Advertising and promotion     7,068    7,567    7,203 
Administrative and general     15,085    16,024    15,354 
Human resources     1,541    1,658    1,588 
Maintenance     4,728    5,574    5,596 

Rentals     3,780    7,050    7,098 
Property taxes     2,294    2,578    2,483 
Depreciation and amortization     9,151    8,557    8,160 

      81,424    90,030    88,405 
Other expenses from managed and affiliated properties (1)     21,237    14,543    12,727 

Total costs and expenses (1)     102,661    104,573    101,132 
                  
Operating income (loss)     (3,829)   (1,905)   1,502 
                  
Other income (deductions):                 

Interest expense     (3,025)   (3,965)   (6,249)

Interest income     1,584    1,129    389 
Foreign exchange profit (loss)     35    (28)   10 
Gain on sales of assets     14    4,082    172 

      (1,392)   1,218    (5,678)

Loss before income taxes     (5,221)   (687)   (4,176)

Income tax provision (benefit)     (1,698)   (5,355)   426 
Net income (loss)   $ (3,523) $ 4,668  $ (4,602)

                  
Basic and diluted income (loss) per share   $ (0.95) $ 1.26  $ (1.24)

                  
Dividends per share   $ 0.20  $ 1.10  $ --  
Weighted average shares outstanding     3,698    3,698    3,698 
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SONESTA INTERNATIONAL HOTELS CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31, 2006 and 2005
(in thousands, except for per share amounts)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

    2006  2005 
ASSETS        
Current assets:            

Cash and cash equivalents   $ 24,888  $ 24,941 
Restricted cash     --     267 
Accounts and notes receivable:             
Trade, less allowance of $87 ($94 in 2005) for doubtful accounts      6,928    8,821 
Other, including current portion of long-term receivables and    advances     1,551    3,634 

Total accounts and notes receivable     8,479    12,455 
Inventories     532    1,156 
Refundable income taxes     89    883 

Current deferred tax assets     353    456 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets     1,275    1,784 

Total current assets     35,616    41,942 
             
Long-term receivables and advances     6,879    7,520 
             
             
             
Deferred tax assets     7,873    6,077 
             
Investment in development partnership (see Note 2)     35,291    --  
             
Property and equipment, at cost:            

Land and land improvements     2,102    9,102 
Buildings     25,984    57,895 
Furniture and equipment     30,730    38,555 

Leasehold improvements     8,076    7,486 
Projects in progress     560    __538 

      67,452    113,576 
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization     29,052    40,777 

Net property and equipment     38,400    72,799 
             
Other long-term assets     2,369    __2,281 
    $ 126,428  $ 130,619 
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SONESTA INTERNATIONAL HOTELS CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31, 2006 and 2005 
(in thousands, except for per share amounts) 
 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

    2006  2005 
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY        
Current liabilities:            

Accounts payable   $ 3,782  $ 4,935 
Advance deposits     829    2,126 

Accrued income taxes     449    1,160 
Accrued liabilities:            

Salaries and wages     1,053    1,277 
Rentals     3,127    6,176 
Interest     252    252 
Pension and other employee benefits     262    788 
Other     1,320    _1,773 

      6,014    10,266 
Total current liabilities     11,074    18,487 

             
Long-term debt     34,061    34,061 
             
Deferred gain (see Note 2)     64,481    --  
             
Finance obligation (see Note 2)     --     59,728 
             
             
Other non-current liabilities     9,441    6,478 
             
Commitments and contingencies            
             
             
             
Stockholders’ equity:            

Common stock:            
Class A, $.80 par value            

Authorized--10,000 shares             
Issued - 6,102 shares at stated value     4,882    4,882 
Retained earnings     14,773    19,036 

Treasury shares - 2,404, at cost     (12,053)   (12,053)

Accumulated other comprehensive loss      (231)   --  
Total stockholders’ equity     7,371    _11,865 

    $ 126,428  $ 130,619 
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SONESTA INTERNATIONAL HOTELS CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY 
 
For each of the three years ended December 31, 2006 
(in thousands, except for per share date)  
 

 
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

 
Common Shares 

Outstanding

   
Class A Common 

Stock

 
 

Treasury Shares at Cost

 
 

Retained
Earnings 

Accumulated Other 
Comprehensive Loss 

 
Total Stockholders’ 

Equity

             
3,698 Balance January 1, 2004 $4,882 $(12,053) $23,037 $ -- $15,866

--  Net loss -- -- (4,602) -- (4,602)
3,698 Balance December 31, 2004 4,882 (12,053) 18,435 -- 11,264

 
-- 

Cash dividends on common stock 
($1.10 per share) 

 
-- 

 
-- 

 
(4,067)

 
-- 

 
(4,067)

-- Net income -- -- 4,668 -- 4,668
3,698 Balance December 31, 2005 4,882 (12,053) 19,036 -- 11,865

 
-- 

Cash dividends on common stock 
($0.20 per share) 

 
-- 

 
-- 

 
(740)

 
-- 

 
(740)

-- Net loss -- -- (3,523) -- (3,523)

 
-- 

Pension Plan, actuarial loss recognized  
-- 

 
-- 

 
-- 

 
(231)

 
(231)

3,698 Balance December 31, 2006 $4,882 $(12,053) $14,773 $(231) $7,371
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

 
For each of the three years ended December 31, 2006 
(in thousands)  

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

    2006   2005   2004  
               
Net income (loss)   $ (3,523) $ 4,668  $ (4,602)

                  
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:                 
Pension Plan, actuarial loss recognized     (231)   --     --  
                  
Comprehensive income (loss)   $ (3,754) $ 4,668  $ (4,602)
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SONESTA INTERNATIONAL HOTELS CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For each of the three years ended December 31, 2006
(in thousands)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

    2006  2005  2004 
Cash provided (used) by operating activities                 

Net income (loss)   $ (3,523) $ 4,668  $ (4,602)

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash                 
provided by (used in) operating activities                 

Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment     9,151    8,557    8,160 
Other amortization     41    54    90 
Deferred federal and state income tax provision (benefit)     (1,575)   (11,664)   40 
Gain on sales of assets     (14)   (4,082)   (172)

Deferred interest income     --     (326)   (228)

Deferred interest expense     --     --     504 
                  
Changes in assets and liabilities                 

Restricted cash     267    660    (927)

Accounts and notes receivable     1,688    (2,163)   804 
Inventories     625    59    (107)

Prepaid expenses and other     650    583    54 
Accounts payable     (1,153)   928    23 
Advance deposits     (1,297)   (735)   (111)

Income taxes     (57)   (423)   166 
Accrued liabilities     (1,376)   187    3,441 
Cash provided (used) by operating activities     3,427    (3,697)   7,135 

                  
Cash provided (used) by investing activities                 

Proceeds from sales of assets     739    4,966    478 
Proceeds from finance obligation     --     59,978    --  
Payments received from development partnership     500    --     --  
Expenditures for property and equipment     (6,283)   (4,797)   (4,054)

New loans and advances     (1,670)   (1,879)   (1,069)

Payments received on long-term receivables and    advances      3,974    1,657    1,176 
Other investments     --     --     (43)

Cash provided (used) by investing activities     (2,740)   59,925    (3,512)

                  
Cash used by financing activities                 

Repayments of long-term debt     --     (35,539)   --  
Cash dividends paid     (740)   (3,698)   --  
Cash used by financing activities     (740)   (39,237)   --  

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents     (53)   16,991    3,623 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year     24,941    7,950    4,327 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year   $ 24,888  $ 24,941  $ 7,950 
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SONESTA INTERNATIONAL HOTELS CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 
 

 
Basis of Presentation: 
 
Sonesta International Hotels Corporation (the Company) is engaged in the operation of hotels in Boston (Cambridge), Massachusetts; New Orleans, Louisiana; and Key Biscayne, 
Florida. The Key Biscayne hotel closed in August 2006 (see Note 2 - Operations). The Company also operates, under management agreements, hotels in Bermuda (until May 2004); 
Coconut Grove and Sunny Isles (Miami), Florida; New Orleans, Louisiana; and in Cairo, Sharm El Sheikh, Luxor, Taba, and Port Said, Egypt. The Company also manages five Nile River 
cruise ships in Egypt. Sonesta has granted licenses, for which it receives fees, for the use of its name for hotels in St. Maarten, Peru and Brazil. 
 
Principles of Consolidation: 
 
The consolidated financial statements include the results of operations of wholly owned and leased properties, and fee income and certain revenues and costs from reimbursable 
expenses incurred at managed and affiliated properties. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated. The Company has identified certain of its 
management agreements as variable interest entities in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board interpretation No. 46(R), “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities”. 
However, the Company does not believe it bears the majority of the risk of loss from the variable interest entity’s activities, nor is it entitled to receive the majority of the variable 
interest entity’s residual returns. As a result, these entities are not consolidated in the Company’s financial statements. 
 
Foreign Currency Transactions: 
 
Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are converted at end of year rates, and income and expense items are converted at weighted average rates during the period. The 
net result of such conversions is charged or credited to the statement of operations. 
 
Inventories: 
 
Merchandise and supplies are stated at the lower of cost (first-in/first-out method) or market. 
 
Revenue Recognition: 
 
The Company’s revenues are primarily derived from (1) owned and leased hotels and (2) management, license and service fees. 
 

 

 
Restatement of income and expenses from managed and affiliated properties: 
 
During 2006, the Company determined that, in accordance with the Emerging Issues Task Force, Issue no. 01-14, “Income Statement Characterization of Reimbursements received 
for “Out of Pocket” expenses Incurred”, the reimbursements of certain expenses incurred on behalf of managed and affiliated properties, and the costs incurred on behalf of owners 
of managed properties should be recorded on a “gross” basis in revenues and costs, rather than on a “net” basis as previously presented in the Company’s financial statements. 
These costs relate primarily to payroll and related costs of managed properties in which the Company is the employer. The revenue for these costs is included in Other revenue 
from managed and affiliated properties and the offsetting expense is included in Other expenses from managed and affiliated properties. Comparative financial statements for the 
prior periods have been restated to conform with the current period financial statements. Since the reimbursements are made based on the actual costs incurred with no added 
margin, this restatement has no effect on operating income, net income, cash flows or the financial position of the Company for the current period or any prior period. 
 
Advertising: 
 
The cost of advertising is generally expensed as incurred. 
 
Property and Equipment: 
 
Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation and amortization of items of property and equipment are computed generally on the straight-line method based on the following 
estimated useful lives: 
 

1.  Basis of Presentation and Significant Accounting Policies 

·      Owned and leased hotels - The majority of the Company’s income is derived from its owned and leased hotels from the rental of rooms, food and beverage sales as well as 
charges for parking, telephone and other incidental charges. These revenues are recognized when rooms are occupied and services have been rendered. 

·      Management, license and service fees - Represents fee income from hotels operated under management agreements, and license fees from hotels to which the Company has 
licensed the use of the “Sonesta” name. Management fees include base fees and marketing fees, which are generally based on a percentage of gross revenues, and incentive 
fees, which are generally based on the hotels’ profitability. These fees are typically based on revenues and income achieved during each calendar year. Incentive fees, and 
management and marketing fees of which the receipt is based on annual profits achieved, are recognized throughout the year on a quarterly basis based on profits achieved 
during the interim periods when our agreements provide for quarterly payments during the calendar years they are earned, and when such fees would be due if the management 
agreements were terminated. As a result, during quarterly periods, fee income may not be indicative of eventual income recognized at the end of each calendar year due to 
changes in business conditions and profitability. License fees are earned based on a percentage of room revenues of the hotels. Revenues and expenses of hotels operated 
under management agreements are excluded from the Company’s consolidated statement of operations, except for certain costs described below. 

Buildings and building improvements  
  Owned Properties 10 to 40 years 
   
Furniture and Equipment  
  Located in owned properties 5 to 10 years 
  Located in leased properties 5 to 10 years of remaining lease terms 



 
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed of: 
 
The carrying values of long-lived assets, which include property and equipment and intangibles, are evaluated periodically for impairment when impairment indicators are present. 
Future undiscounted cash flows of the underlying assets are compared to the assets’ carrying values. Adjustments to fair value are made if the sum of expected future undiscounted 
cash flows are less than book value. To date, no adjustments for impairment have been made. 
 
Income Taxes: 
 
We provide for income taxes in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes”. The Company and its United States subsidiaries file a consolidated federal income tax 
return. Federal and foreign income taxes are provided on earnings of foreign subsidiaries. 

   
Leasehold improvements Remaining lease years 
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments: 
 
The Company's financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, accounts and notes receivable, accounts payable and long-term debt. With the exception of its long-term 
debt, the Company believes that the carrying value of its financial instruments approximates their fair values. The book balance at December 31, 2006 of the Company’s long-term debt, 
which carries an interest rate of 8.6%, is $34,061,000. The Company estimates the fair value of this debt at approximately $35,344,000, based on current prevailing interest rates for similar 
mortgage debt. 
 
Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Standards: 

 
In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued SFAS No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans — an 
amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R),” which requires plan sponsors of defined benefit pension and other postretirement benefit plans (collectively, “Benefit 
Plans”) to recognize the funded status of their Benefit Plans in the consolidated balance sheet, measure the fair value of plan assets and benefit obligations as of the date of the fiscal 
year-end statement of financial position, and provide additional disclosures. On December 31, 2006, the Company adopted the recognition and disclosure provisions of SFAS No. 158. 
The effect of adopting SFAS No. 158 on the Company’s financial condition at December 31, 2006 has been included in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. 
SFAS No. 158 has been applied prospectively and does not impact the Company’s prior year financial statements. SFAS No. 158’s provisions regarding the change in the measurement 
date of Benefit Plans are not applicable as the Company currently uses a measurement date of December 31 for its pension plan. See Note 7 for further discussion of the effect of 
adopting SFAS No. 158 on the Company’s consolidated financial statements. 

 
In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements,” which provides enhanced guidance for using fair value to measure assets and liabilities. SFAS No. 157 
establishes a common definition of fair value, provides a framework for measuring fair value under U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and expands disclosure requirements 
about fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 is effective for financial statements issued in fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, and interim periods within those fiscal years. 
The Company is currently evaluating the impact, if any, the adoption of SFAS No. 157 will have on the consolidated financial statements. 

In September 2006, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB 108”), which expresses the Staff’s views regarding the process of quantifying financial statement misstatements. 
The bulletin was effective at fiscal year end 2006. The implementation of this bulletin had no impact on the Company’s results of operations, cash flows or financial position. 
 
In June, 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an interpretation of FASB Statement 
109” (“FIN 48”). This statement clarifies the criteria that an individual tax position must satisfy for some or all of the benefits of that position to be recognized in a company’s financial 
statements. FIN 48 prescribes a recognition threshold of more-likely-than-not, and a measurement attribute for all tax positions taken or expected to be taken on a tax return, in order for 
those tax positions to be recognized in the financial statements. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 31, 2006. Accordingly, the Company will adopt FIN 48 on 
January 1, 2007. The cumulative effect of applying the provisions of FIN 48 will be reported as an adjustment of the Company’s opening balance of retained earnings (or other 
appropriate components of equity or net assets in the statement of financial position). The Company is in the process of assessing the impact of this interpretation.  

In June 2006, the FASB ratified the consensus reached in EITF Issue No. 06-2, “Accounting for Sabbatical Leave and Other Similar Benefits Pursuant to FASB Statement No. 43.” EITF 
Issue No. 06-2 provides recognition guidance on the accrual of employees’ rights to compensated absences under a sabbatical or other similar benefit arrangement. EITF Issue No. 06-2 
is effective for the Company for all financial statements after December 31, 2006. We are currently assessing the impact of the adoption of EITF Issue No. 06-2 on our financial 
statements.

 
FASB Statement No. 123 (Revised 2004), Share-Based Payment (SFAS 123R) was issued in December, 2004. SFAS 123R replaces SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based 
Compensation (SFAS 123), and supercedes APB Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees. SFAS 123R requires companies to recognize the compensation cost related 
to share-based payment transactions with employees in the financial statements. Since the Company has no share based compensation plans of any kind, the adoption of SFAS 123R in 
2006 did not affect the Company’s financial position and results of operations.  
 
Use of Estimates: 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 
Reclassification: 
 
Certain amounts in the 2004 and 2005 financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the 2006 presentation. 
 
Statement of Cash Flows: 
 
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of less than 90 days, which are readily convertible into cash. 
 
Cash paid for interest in 2006, 2005 and 2004 was approximately $2,983,000, $3,430,000 and $5,647,000, respectively. Net cash refunded for income taxes in 2006 was approximately 
$66,000. Cash paid for income taxes in 2005 and 2004 was approximately $6,732,000 and $224,000, respectively.

 
In April 2005, the Company transferred the land and improvements of Sonesta Beach Resort, in Key Biscayne, Florida to a new partnership in which the Company is a 50% 
limited partner (see Note 2 - Operations). The Company continued to operate the hotel until August 2006. Following the closure of the hotel on August 31, 2006, the Company 
recorded the transfer of assets to the new partnership, which resulted in the following non-cash transaction (in thousands): 

 

 

Increase in investment in development partnership   $ 35,791 
Decrease in accumulated depreciation     8,428 
Transfer of building & improvements     (32,466)

Transfer of land     (7,000)

Increase in deferred gain     (64,481)

Decrease in finance obligation     59,728 

2.  Operations 



 
Sonesta Beach Resort Key Biscayne 
 
In April 2005, Sonesta Beach Resort Limited Partnership (“SBRLP”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Sonesta International Hotels Corporation (“Sonesta”), completed the transfer of the 
land and improvements of Sonesta Beach Resort, 
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in Key Biscayne, Florida to a partnership between SBRLP and affiliates of Fortune International, a Miami-based real estate development and brokerage firm (“Fortune”). SBRLP is a 50% 
limited partner in the new partnership, and affiliates of Fortune are the general partner and a limited partner, together owning a 50% interest in the partnership. The new partnership, 
SBR-Fortune Associates, LLLP (“SBR-Fortune”), contemplates the construction of a new resort on the hotel site which would include a luxury condominium hotel and residences, 
meeting/function space, a spa and other facilities. 
 
In connection with the closing in April 2005 of the transfer of the land and improvements to the new development partnership, Sonesta received $30,011,000 in cash, and, in addition, an 
existing mortgage of $29,967,000 on the property was paid off by SBR-Fortune. Sonesta also received a priority equity position in SBR-Fortune of approximately $60 million. This value 
will be paid to Sonesta out of the first available net proceeds from the sale of condominium units, after repayment of debt. Thereafter, Fortune will receive its initial $30 million equity 
contribution, plus any additional equity contributions it was required to make to develop the new resort. Subsequent to Fortune fully recovering its investment, profits will be split 
equally. Sonesta is not required to fund any additional equity beyond the contribution of the land and improvements. Fortune has sole responsibility for arranging financing and 
completing construction of the new resort. 
 
From April 2005 through August 31, 2006, the Company continued to operate the existing hotel under a token ($1 per year) lease with SBR-Fortune, and reflected all income and 
expenses of the hotel in its statement of operations. Additionally, the hotel’s assets remained included in fixed assets, and continued to be depreciated. Due to its continuing 
involvement, the Company recognized the net proceeds received in April 2005 ($59,728,000) as a finance obligation. Federal and state taxes paid on the taxable gain in 2005 of 
approximately $29.6 million from this transaction were recorded as deferred tax assets. 
 
Sonesta Beach Resort Key Biscayne closed for business on August 31, 2006. Costs related to the closure of $4 million including severance payments to employees, funding of vacation 
pay, pension obligations and other costs, were reimbursed by SBR-Fortune, and are included in other revenues and expenses from managed and affiliated properties. Amounts paid by 
the Company in excess of the reimbursable $4 million, which amounted to approximately $250,000, are included in costs and operating expenses.  
 
During the third quarter of 2006, the Company removed the hotel’s assets from its balance sheet, and recorded an investment for its 50% equity ownership in the developing partnership 
amounting to $35,791,000. This investment is based on 50% of the estimated fair value of the assets transferred plus 50% of the remaining book value of the assets, reduced by the 
proceeds received in April 2005. The investment will be accounted for in accordance with the equity method of accounting for investments. The estimated fair value of the assets is $160 
million, based on a valuation of the highest and best use of the land by a nationally recognized real estate firm. The book value of the land and improvements was approximately $31 
million at August 31, 2006. The proceeds received equaled $59,728,000. 
 
The deferred gain of $64,481,000 recorded on the Company’s consolidated balance sheets during the 2006 third quarter consists of 50% of the estimated market value of the assets 
contributed to the development partnership, reduced by 50% of the remaining book value of the assets contributed at August 31, 2006. Due to the continuing involvement of the 
Company by virtue of its ownership in SBR-Fortune and its right to manage the new condominium hotel to be constructed on the site, the gain on the transfer of the assets will be 
deferred. Additional proceeds received from the development partnership will first reduce the investment account, and future proceeds in excess of the investment account will be 
added to the deferred gain. Once the new condominium hotel commences operations, the deferred gain will be amortized over a 30-year period, which coincides with the estimated useful 
life of the new building. 
 
Due to the Company’s continuing involvement in the development partnership and the new resort to be constructed on the site, the historical results of Sonesta Beach Resort Key 
Biscayne have not been accounted for as a discontinued operation. 
 
Following the closure of the hotel, the Company is entitled to monthly distributions of $125,000 from SBR-Fortune, which payments reduce the priority equity return the Company is 
entitled to from the partnership. Payments received in 2006 of $500,000 reduced the investment the Company has in the development partnership. 
 
Partnership efforts to obtain building permits for the new development have met opposition from residents of the Village of Key Biscayne, delaying the permitting process. It is 
uncertain at this point when construction of the new resort will start. In addition, the partnership may consider changes to the original plans, which called for a condominium hotel of 
approximately 300 rooms, to allow for a smaller hotel and a larger residential component. 
 
Other 
 
In 2006, the Company started operations for two additional Nile River cruise ships in Egypt, named the Sonesta St. George I and the Sonesta Star Goddess. Under the management 
agreements for these ships, the Company will receive fees based on operating profits. Also in 2006, the Company entered into a new license agreement for the use of its name for a 
second hotel on the island of St. Maarten. Sonesta Great Bay Beach Resort & Casino started operating under the Sonesta flag in November 2006. Sonesta Hotel Brasilia, in Brazil, also 
started operating under the Sonesta flag, in October 2006. The Company is entitled to a percentage of room revenues from its licensed hotels. 
 
Chateau Sonesta Hotel New Orleans, which the Company operates under a long-term management agreement, was closed from August 29 to November 30, 2005 due to damages 
sustained from Hurricane Katrina. The hotel’s owner notified the Company that it would only pay for losses, and for repairs, to the extent of available insurance proceeds. As a result, 
the Company advanced $1,025,000 in 2005 and an additional $870,000 in early 2006 to cover operating expenses and to pay for repairs necessary to reopen the hotel on December 1, 
2005. Insurance proceeds received by the owner have been used to fund certain repairs, but the majority of the funds have been used to fund monthly payments on the hotel’s first 
mortgage loan. In February 2007, insurance proceeds were fully utilized, and after a debt service payment due February 1, 2007 was not paid, the lender declared a default. After 
extended negotiations, the Company and the hotel’s owner signed a purchase and sale agreement in late February 2007. Under this agreement, the Company committed to acquire the 
hotel in return for the aforementioned advances (approximately $1.9 million) and by assuming the hotel’s first mortgage loan (approximately $13.6 million) and outstanding obligations 
for hotel repairs and overdue rents and taxes due to the City of New Orleans (approximately $2.2 million). The hotel is subject to a ground lease, which the Company will assume. The 
purchase and sale agreement has certain contingencies, including the approval by a limited partner of the seller.  
 
The Company operates the Sonesta Hotel & Suites Coconut Grove, in Miami, which is a condominium hotel that opened in April 2002. Under its agreements, the Company is committed 
to fund net operating losses, and to provide the hotel’s owner with a minimum annual return of $500,000, adjusted annually by increases in the Consumer Price Index, starting January 1, 
2004. Starting in 2005, the management agreement can be terminated by the hotel’s owner if the Company fails to cure shortfalls against a minimum target return of $1,000,000, adjusted 
annually by increases in the CPI. From April 2002 through December 2005, the Company contributed and expensed $2,067,000 for operating losses, shortfalls against the minimum 
owners return for 2004, and shortfalls against the minimum target return for 2005. The shortfall for 2005 in the 
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amount of $263,000 was funded by way of a reduction of the outstanding receivables from the hotel’s owner in 2006. The hotel’s 2006 net operating profit, before the Company’s fee 
income earned under the management agreement, was sufficient to cover the owner’s target return.  
 
The Company operates the Trump International Sonesta Beach Resort, a condominium hotel in Sunny Isles, Florida. This hotel opened in April 2003. The Company contributed to the 
cost of the hotel’s non-guestroom furniture, fixtures and equipment, and has recorded an investment of $2,268,000 for same. The Company also guarantees an equipment lease in the 
original amount of $1,000,000. Additionally, the Company advanced $2,328,000 for pre-opening expenses, which amount was repaid in January 2006. Under its management agreement, 
the Company was obligated to fund 50% of the hotel’s losses from the opening through November 1, 2004. After this date, the Company is obligated to pay the owner a minimum annual 
return of $800,000. The Company advanced $1,391,000 for losses through November 1, 2004, which amount is included in long-term receivables and advances. In 2005, the Company 
recorded an expense of $393,000 for a shortfall incurred against the minimum return during the period November 1, 2004 through December 31, 2005. In 2006, the hotel’s net operating 
profit was sufficient to cover the owner’s minimum return, and pay the Company approximately $256,000. The Company utilized this payment to reduce the aforementioned advance for 
losses. 
 
During 2005 the Company sold land it owned in Costa Rica for $4.5 million, and reported a $3,950,000 pre-tax gain after deducting the $450,000 book value of the land and related 
expenses. The Company had owned the land since 1995. It was originally intended for a new resort, but the development never materialized. 
 
In late 2003, the Company reached agreements with its lender to restructure its mortgage debt on Royal Sonesta Hotel Boston (Cambridge) (see Note 4 - Borrowing Arrangements). The 
restructuring provided for lower interest payments, and the deferral of principal payments, starting January 1, 2004.  
 
Gross revenues for hotels operated by the Company under management contracts, by geographic area, for each of the three years ended December 31, 2006, are summarized below: 
 

 
Costs and operating expenses for owned and leased hotels for the three years ended December 31, 2006 are summarized below:  
 

 
Direct departmental costs include payroll expense and related payroll burden, the cost of food and beverage consumed and other departmental costs. 

With the exception of 2005, the Company experienced losses during the past five years. This was in part due to the declines in business and leisure travel since September 2001. During 
the past three years, the Company did operate with a positive cash flow. In 2005, cash flow was enhanced by a transaction that involves the redevelopment of the Sonesta Beach Resort 
Key Biscayne site. This transaction provided the Company with substantial cash resources, which will be sufficient for the Company to meet its working capital needs, operating 
expenses, rent and capital expenditures in the normal course of its business for the foreseeable future.

 

 

 

    (in thousands)  
    (unaudited)  
     
    2006   2005   2004  
               
United States   $ 51,751  $ 46,764  $ 45,077 
Egypt     37,729    39,077    36,139 
    $ 89,480  $ 85,841  $ 81,216 

    (in thousands)  
     
    2006   2005   2004  
Direct departmental costs:              

Rooms   $ 12,049  $ 13,331  $ 13,043 
Food and beverage     17,590    19,922    20,232 
Heat, light and power     3,994    3,395    3,348 
Other     4,144    4,374    4,300 

    $ 37,777  $ 41,022  $ 40,923 

3.  Long-Term Receivables and Advances 

    (in thousands)  
     
    December 31,2006   December 31,2005  
Sharm El Sheikh, Egypt (a)   $ 126  $ 391 
Sonesta Hotel & Suites Coconut Grove (b)     4,346    5,003 
Trump International Sonesta Beach Resort (c)     1,135    3,720 
Chateau Sonesta Hotel New Orleans (d)     1,895    1,025 
Other     565    740 
       

Total long-term receivables     8,067    10,879 
Less: current portion     1,188    3,359 

       
Net long-term receivables   $ 6,879  $ 7,520 

       

(a) This loan, in the original amount of $1,000,000, was made in 1996 and 1997 to the owner of the Sonesta Beach Resort, Sharm El Sheikh. The loan bears interest at the prime rate 
(8.25% at December 31, 2006) and is adjusted semi-annually. The loan is being repaid with monthly payments of $23,800, and matures in 2007. 

(b) This loan was made to the owner of the Sonesta Hotel & Suites Coconut Grove, Miami, which opened in April 2002, to fund construction and furniture, fixtures and equipment 



 

 

costs. The interest rate is equal to the prime rate (8.25% at December 31, 2006), plus ¾%. The loan is secured by a mortgage on the hotel property, and is being repaid out of 
hotel profits that are available for distribution to the owner, and, to the extent the hotel’s earnings are insufficient to pay the owner certain minimum annual returns and 
minimum annual target returns due under the management agreement, out of shortfalls funded by the Company. The reduction in the principal balance during 2006 of $657,000 
included a $263,000 write-off to cure a shortfall against the minimum target return due to the owner for the calendar year 2005. 

(c) This amount represents advances made to the owner of Trump International Sonesta Beach Resort Sunny Isles for the Company’s share of the losses of the resort from the 
opening on April 1, 2003 through October 31, 2004 ($1,391,000). This amount was due pursuant to the terms of the management agreement under which the Company operates 
the hotel. No interest is charged on this advance, which will be repaid out of future available profits generated by the hotel, after the payment of a minimum annual return to the 
hotel’s owner. The Company reduced these advances by $256,000 received from the hotel in 2006. A separate advance for pre-opening expenses ($2,328,000) was repaid in 
January 2006. 
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Management continually monitors the collectability of its (long-term) receivables and advances and believes they are fully realizable. 

Credit Line

The Company has a $2,000,000 demand line of credit. This line bears interest at the prime rate (8.25% at December 31, 2006). Advances under this line require the bank’s approval each 
time a request is made. No amounts were outstanding under this line of credit at December 31, 2006.  
 
There were no short-term borrowings during 2006 and 2005. During 2004, average short-term borrowings were $21,000, at an average interest rate of 4%. The maximum amount of short-
term borrowings during 2004 was $800,000. 
 
Long-Term Debt 

The Company’s long-term debt consists of a first mortgage note held by Charterhouse of Cambridge Trust and Sonesta of Massachusetts, Inc., which are the Company’s 
subsidiaries that own and operate the Royal Sonesta Hotel Boston (Cambridge). The principal balance outstanding at December 31, 2006 and 2005 was $34,061,000. The debt is 
secured by a first mortgage on the Royal Sonesta Hotel Boston (Cambridge) property, which is included in fixed assets at a net book value of $21,962,000 at December 31, 2006. The 
interest rate is 8.6% for the term of the loan, and the loan matures in July 2010. 
 
In April 2005, the Company closed on a transaction to transfer the land and improvements of the Sonesta Beach Resort, Key Biscayne (see Note 2 - Operations). As part of this 
transaction a mortgage loan secured by the Key Biscayne hotel was repaid and, in addition, the Company paid $5,572,000 towards the Royal Sonesta Hotel Boston (Cambridge) 
loan. The $5,572,000 payment included $1,077,000 of deferred principal payments and an additional prepayment of $4,495,000 which was required by the lender because the Key 
Biscayne and Cambridge mortgage loans were cross-collateralized. 
 
Effective December 1, 2003, the Company and the lender restructured the mortgage loan. The Company was required to make payments of interest only at 5% per annum through 
December 1, 2006, and payments of interest only at 8.6% per annum are due from December 1, 2006 through December 1, 2007. As of January 1, 2008, payments will be based on 
interest and principal, calculated on the original 25-year amortization schedule of the loan, taking into account the aforementioned prepayments of principal. During the entire 
restructuring period, interest continued to accrue at 8.6%. Excess cash flow from the Royal Sonesta Hotel Boston (Cambridge) remaining after payment of interest is required to be 
paid into escrow, and may be used solely for the future payment of hotel expenses or capital expenditures, or to reduce the amount of the accrued and unpaid interest. At December 
31, 2005, the escrow balance equaled $267,000, which amount was included in Restricted Cash on the Company’s balance sheet. Due to the fact that the hotel spent significant 
amounts on refurbishments during the past year, no amount was required to be paid in escrow at December 31, 2006.

Aggregate principal payments for the years subsequent to December 31, 2006, are as follows: 
 

 

 
Basic Earnings (Losses) per Share

 
As the Company has no dilutive securities, there is no difference between basic and diluted earnings per share. The following table sets forth the computation of basic income or losses 
per share (in thousands, except for per share data):

 

 

 
The Company operates the Sonesta Hotel & Suites Coconut Grove, Miami, which is a condominium hotel that opened in April 2002, and the Trump International Sonesta Beach Resort, 
a condominium hotel in Sunny Isles, Florida, which opened in April 2003. Under the management agreements for these hotels, the Company is committed to fund certain operating 
losses and minimum returns to the owners of the hotels. These commitments are described, in detail, in Note 2 - Operations. 
 
The Company has also guaranteed an equipment lease in the original amount of $1,000,000 on behalf of the Trump International Sonesta Beach Resort Sunny Isles. The lease is due in 

(d) Following Hurricane Katrina, which struck New Orleans in late August 2005, the Company advanced $1,895,000 to Chateau Sonesta Hotel New Orleans, which it operates under 
a long-term management agreement. These advances were used to cover operating expenses, and to pay for repairs necessary to reopen the hotel on December 1, 2005. Unless 
the Company acquires the hotel, the Company expects to recover these advances, together with interest, out of available income from the hotel. The interest rate on these 
advances ranges from prime (8.25% at December 31, 2006) plus one (1) to three (3) percentage points. The Company is negotiating a possible acquisition of the hotel with its 
owner and lender (see Note 2 - Operations). 

4.  Borrowing Arrangements 

Year   (in thousands)  
2007   $ --  
2008     602 
2009     665 
2010     32,794 

        

5.  Stockholders’ Equity 

    2006  2005  2004 
Numerator:                 
Net income (loss)   $ (3,523) $ 4,668  $ (4,602)

                  
Denominator:                 

Weighted average number of shares outstanding     3,698    3,698    3,698 
                  
Net income (loss) per share   $ (0.95) $ 1.26  $ (1.24)

6.  Commitments and Contingencies 



monthly installments with final payment due in June, 2008. The Company would be obligated to perform under this guarantee if the hotel failed to pay principal and interest payments to 
the lender when due. Including accrued interest, as of December 31, 2006 the maximum potential amount of future (undiscounted) payments under this agreement would be $351,000. 
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The Company operates the Royal Sonesta Hotel, New Orleans, Louisiana, under a lease. In 2003 the Company exercised the second of three 10-year options to extend the lease. The 
lease requires payment of percentage rent based on net profits, as defined. The Company leases space for its executive offices in Boston, Massachusetts, which lease will expire in May 
2012. The Company provides for rent expense on a straight line basis over the term of the lease. The Company is also committed, under various operating leases, for certain other 
property and real estate. 

Minimum fixed rentals under operating leases, principally on real estate, payable subsequent to December 31, 2006 (exclusive of real estate taxes, insurance and other occupancy costs) 
are as follows: 
 

Rentals charged to operations are as follows:

 
The Company has incentive compensation plans for management under which hotel profit bases, as established annually, must be achieved before any incentive compensation may be 
earned. The incentive compensation charged to operations was $458,000 in 2006, $422,000 in 2005 and $533,000 in 2004.

 

 
Pension Plan

 
The Company maintains a non-contributory defined benefit pension plan (the Plan) for certain employees of Sonesta International Hotels Corporation and its subsidiaries. Benefits are 
based on the employee’s years of service and the highest average monthly salary during any 60 consecutive months of employment. The Company’s funding policy is to contribute 
annually at least the minimum contribution required by ERISA. The Company does not offer any other post-retirement benefit plans. 
 
Pension Plan Changes 
 
Effective January 1, 2006, the Plan was amended to increase the total number of years of service required for participants to be eligible for full benefits under the Plan from 27 to 35 years. 
At the same time, a minimum benefit payable for each year of service was reduced. Effective December 31, 2006, the Company decided to freeze the Plan. Current participants in the Plan 
at December 31, 2006 will continue to be eligible to receive a pension benefit, provided they meet the 5-years of service vesting requirement during their employment with the Company. 
However, the amount of all pension benefits due under the Plan will be frozen at the December 31, 2006 level. Any additional service and/or compensation increases after January 1, 2007 
will not increase the participant’s benefits. In addition, newly hired employees will not receive benefits under the Plan. 

Adoption of SFAS No. 158

On December 31, 2006, the Company adopted the recognition and disclosure provisions of SFAS No. 158. SFAS No. 158 required the Company to recognize the funded status (i.e., the 
difference between the fair value of plan assets and the projected benefit obligations) of its pension plan in the December 31, 2006 consolidated balance sheet, with a corresponding 
adjustment to accumulated other comprehensive income, net of tax. The adjustment to accumulated other comprehensive income at adoption represents the net unrecognized actuarial 
losses, which were previously netted against the plan’s funded status in the Company’s consolidated balance sheet pursuant to the provisions of SFAS No. 87. These amounts will be 
subsequently recognized as net periodic pension cost pursuant to the Company’s historical accounting policy for amortizing such amounts. Further, actuarial gains and losses that 
arise in subsequent periods and are not recognized as net periodic pension cost in the same periods will be recognized as a component of other comprehensive income. Those amounts 
will be subsequently recognized as a component of net periodic pension cost on the same basis as the amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income at adoption of 
SFAS No. 158.

 
The incremental effect of adopting the provisions of SFAS No. 158 on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2006 is as follows (in thousands):  

 
The adoption of SFAS No. 158 had no effect on the Company’s consolidated statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2006, or for any prior period presented, and it will 

    (in thousands)  
    Operating leases  
     

Period       
2007   $ 684 
2008     640 
2009     632 
2010     634 
2011     637 

Thereafter     343 
     
    $ 3,570 
     

    (in thousands)  
     
    2006  2005  2004 
Real Estate:                 

Fixed rentals   $ 670  $ 887  $ 662 
Percentage rentals based on defined operating profits     3,093    6,144    6,417 

Other rentals     17    19    19 
    $ 3,780  $ 7,050  $ 7,098 

7.  Pension and Benefit Plans 

Increase in accrued pension liability   $ (350)

Increase in deferred tax assets     119 
Increase in Comprehensive Loss     231 



not effect the Company’s operating results in future periods. Had the Company not been required to adopt SFAS No. 158 at December 31, 2006, it would have recognized an additional 
minimum liability pursuant to the provisions of SFAS No. 87. 

Included in accumulated other comprehensive income at December 31, 2006 are unrecognized actuarial losses of $350,000 ($231,000, net of tax) that have not yet been recognized 
in net periodic pension cost. The actuarial loss included in accumulated other comprehensive income and expected to be recognized in net periodic pension cost during the year ended 
December 31, 2007 is $35,000 ($23,000, net of tax).
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Obligations and Funded Status

The following table sets forth the funded status of the Plan at December 31, 2006 and 2005:

The Company recognized accrued benefit costs of $9,228,000 and $6,762,000 in its statement of financial position at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. 

The following table presents the projected and accumulated benefit obligation compared to plan assets:

The components of the Company’s net periodic pension cost for the Plan were as follows: 

The additional expense of $1,340,000 related to the closure of Sonesta Beach Resort Key Biscayne on August 31, 2006, and the subsequent termination of the hotel’s employees. The 
additional loss of $561,000 resulted from the write off of previously unrecognized prior service costs following the decision by the Company to freeze the Plan at December 31, 2006. 

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations at each of the three years ending December 31 were: 

    (in thousands)  
    2006  2005 
Change in benefit obligation            
Benefit obligation at beginning of year   $ 37,163  $ 33,285 
Service cost     1,597    1,866 
Interest cost     2,097    2,012 
Actuarial loss     (338)   2,134 
Benefits paid     (3,218)   (2,134)

Reduction from Plan freeze     (6,704)   --  
Benefit obligation at end of year     30,597    37,163 
             
Change in plan assets            
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year     20,138    20,036 
Actual return on plan assets     2,219    207 
Employer contribution     2,440    2,188 
Benefits paid     (3,218)   (2,134)

Administrative expenses     (210)   (159)

Fair value of plan assets at end of year     21,369    20,138 
             
Benefit obligation in excess of Plan assets     9,228    17,025 
Unrecognized actuarial loss     (350)   (9,804)

Unrecognized prior service cost     --     (459)

Additional liability charged to comprehensive loss     350    --   
Accrued pension liability   $ 9,228  $ 6,762 

    (in thousands)  
     
    December 31,  
     
    2006  2005 
           
Projected benefit obligation   $ 30,597  $ 37,163 
Accumulated benefit obligation     30,597    26,701 
Fair value of plan assets     21,369    20,138 

    (in thousands)  
     
    __2006   _2005   _2004  
               
Service cost   $ 1,597  $ 1,866  $ 1,618 
Interest cost     2,097    2,012    1,865 
Expected return on plan assets     (1,792)   (1,740)   (1,591)

Amortization of prior service cost     106    90    89 
Amortization of transition asset     --     (88)   (88)

Recognized actuarial loss     647    676    481 
Termination costs, Sonesta Key Biscayne     1,340    --     --  
Plan freeze loss     561    --     --  
Total plan benefit cost     4,556    2,816    2,374 
Amounts charged to hotels operated under management  contracts and affiliated properties     1,755    __358    __132 
Net periodic benefit cost   $ 2,801    _$2,458  $ 2,242 



Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net periodic pension costs for each of the three years ended December 31 were: 

The assumed rate of return on plan assets has remained unchanged since 1988. Management believes 8.50% is a realistic long-term rate of return. The balanced retirement fund into 
which plan assets have been invested since 1987 has provided a composite average annual rate of return of 11% since 1987. 

Plan Assets 

The Plan’s weighted-average asset allocations at December 31, 2006 and 2005, by asset category, were as follows: 

    2006  2005  2004 
Discount rate     5.75%   5.75%   5.75%

Rate of compensation increase     3.00%   3.00%   3.00%

    2006  2005  2004 
Discount rate     5.75%   5.75%   6.25%

Expected return on plan assets     8.50%   8.50%   8.50%

Rate of compensation increase     3.00%   3.00%   3.00%

    Plan assets at December 31,  
    2006  2005 
         
Cash & money market investments     2%   2%

Government debt securities     17%   23%

Corporate debt securities     4%   2%

Equity securities     77%   73%

      100%   100%
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The Plan’s assets have been invested in a balanced retirement investment fund managed by a Boston-based investment management company since 1987. The investment objective of 
the fund is to achieve capital growth over the long-term through a broadly diversified, actively managed blend of stocks, bonds and money market instruments. In order to moderate the 
Fund’s risk and volatility, a mix of assets is selected for the Fund with the dual objective of providing the opportunity to participate in favorable economic environments, and also 
moderating downside risk in the event economic conditions deteriorate. To further balance risk and return, individual investments are held across a wide range of economic sectors. 
Specific equity selections focus on financially sound companies with strong competitive positions in their industry. Bond holdings are primarily of higher quality issuers. 

Cash Flows

The Company is not required to make a contribution to its Plan in 2007.

The following table sets forth estimated future benefit payments from the Plan. 

Savings Plan

 
The Company has an employee savings plan (the Savings Plan) that qualifies as a deferred salary arrangement under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. Under the Savings 
Plan, participating U.S. employees may defer a portion of their pre-tax earnings up to the Internal Revenue Service annual contribution limit. All U.S. employees of the Company are 
eligible to participate in the Savings Plan. Participating employees may choose to invest their contributions in each one of twenty-five mutual funds, which include equity funds, 
balanced funds and a money market fund. Until December 31, 2006, the Savings Plan did not provide for contributions by the Company. The Company does bear the costs of 
administering the Plan, which were $13,000 for 2006, $20,000 for 2005 and $23,000 for 2004. 
 
Effective January 1, 2007, and in lieu of continuing the Pension Plan, the Company started providing matching contributions of up to 4% of earnings to employees who make 
contributions to their 401(k) savings accounts. The Company will match the first 3% salary deferral of its employees, and 50% of the next 2%. The Company expects the cost of its future 
annual contributions to the 401(k) savings plan to be less than the expense during 2006 of providing benefits under the Pension Plan. 
 

 
The Company has two reportable segments: Owned and Leased Hotels, and Management Activities. The Owned and Leased Hotels segment consists of the operations of the 
Company’s hotels in Boston (Cambridge), Key Biscayne (until August 31, 2006) and New Orleans. Revenues for this segment are derived mainly from rooms, food and beverage, 
parking and telephone receipts from hotel guests. The Management Activities segment includes the operations of hotels and resorts under management agreements, and also includes 
fees from hotels to which the Company has granted licenses. Revenues from this segment are derived mainly from management, marketing, license and service fees charged to the third 
party owners of these properties. The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as those described in the summary of significant accounting policies. The segments’
operating income or losses and pretax profit or losses are after giving effect to management, marketing and service fees to the Company’s owned and leased properties. Segment data 
for the three years ended December 31, 2006 follows: 
 

 

    (in thousands)  
     

   
Estimated Pension 
Benefit Payments  

     
       

2007   $ 859 
2008     842 
2009     927 
2010     943 
2011     1,075 

2012 through 2016     7,558 

8.  Segment Information  

Year ended December 31, 2006      
    (in thousands)  
     
    Owned &

Leased Hotels

  Management
Activities

   
Consolidated

 
   
Revenues   $ 73,643  $ 3,952  $ 77,595 
Other revenues from managed                 

and affiliated properties     --     21,237    21,237 
Total revenues     73,643    25,189    98,832 
Operating income (loss) before depreciation                 

and amortization expense     10,431    (5,109)   5,322 
Depreciation and amortization     (8,638)   (513)   (9,151)

Interest income (expense), net     (2,977)   1,536    (1,441)

Other income     --     49    49 
Segment pre-tax loss     (1,184)   (4,037)   (5,221)

                  
Segment assets     77,893    48,535    126,428 
Segment capital additions     6,057    225    6,282 

Year ended December 31, 2005      
    (in thousands)  



 
Note: Included in other income under Management Activities is a gain on the sale of land by the Company, originally intended for hotel development. 

     
    Owned &

Leased Hotels

  Management
Activities

   
Consolidated

 
   
Revenues   $ 84,139  $ 3,986  $ 88,125 
Other revenues from managed                 

and affiliated properties     --     14,543    14,543 
Total revenues     85,139    18,529    102,668 
Operating income (loss) before depreciation                 

and amortization expense     10,573    (3,921)   6,652 
Depreciation and amortization     (7,968)   (589)   (8,557)

Interest income (expense), net     (3,918)   1,082    (2,836)

Other income     1    4,053    4,054 
Segment pre-tax profit (loss)     (1,312)   625    (687)

                  
Segment assets     79,954    50,665    130,619 
Segment capital additions     4,382    415    4,797 
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Segment assets for Management Activities in the information above include cash held in corporate accounts, and loans to and receivables from properties under management and 
license agreements. Segment assets for Owned and Leased hotels include the book value of the hotels’ fixed assets, and the hotels’ other current and long-term assets.  
 
Segment data by geographic area of the Company's revenues (excluding other revenues from managed and affiliated properties), operating income and long-lived assets follows: 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
Trump International Sonesta Beach Resort Sunny Isles  
 
Sonesta Hotels of Florida, Inc. (“SHF”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Sonesta International Hotels Corporation (the “Company”), operates the Trump International Sonesta Beach 
Resort (the “Hotel”) in Sunny Isles, Florida, under a management agreement with the Hotel’s owner, Sunny Isles Luxury Ventures L.C. (“SILV”). The Hotel opened for business on 
April 1, 2003.  
 
The Hotel is a condominium hotel. The guestrooms are owned by third party buyers and, to the extent condominium units remain unsold, by SILV. The management agreement 
included options for SHF to purchase the Hotel’s non-guestroom areas (the “Hotel Lot”) for twenty million dollars ($20,000,000), and the Hotel’s meeting facilities (the “Commercial 
Lot”) for four million dollars ($4,000,000). The purchase price for both the Hotel and Commercial Lots would be 100% financed by SILV by means of a non-recourse, 25-year loan 
secured by a mortgage on the property acquired. SHF exercised its purchase option for the Hotel Lot in September 2004, and the parties agreed that they would close the 
transaction in early January 2005. Despite its earlier agreements, SILV took the position that it would not close on this transaction and, in response, the Company filed a lawsuit in 

the Circuit Court of the 11th Judicial Circuit in Miami-Dade County, Florida, to compel SILV to close the transaction. In connection with a mediation procedure, SILV and SHF 
entered into a settlement agreement, in September 2005, which addressed a number of issues, including that, subject to certain contingencies, the transaction would close in 
January 2006. The closing of the purchase did not occur as a result of SILV’s repeated and material breaches of the purchase option, the  

Year ended December 31, 2004      
    (in thousands)  
     
    Owned &

Leased Hotels

  Management
Activities

   
Consolidated

 
   
Revenues   $ 85,500  $ 4,407  $ 89,907 
Other revenues from managed                 

and affiliated properties     --     12,727    12,727 
Total revenues     85,500    17,134    102,634 
Operating income (loss) before depreciation                 

and amortization expense     11,912    (2,250)   9,662 
Depreciation and amortization     (7,586)   (574)   (8,160)

Interest income (expense), net     (6,205)   345    (5,860)

Other income (deductions)     (20)   202    182 
Segment pre-tax loss     (1,899)   (2,277)   (4,176)

                  
Segment assets     84,656    24,881    109,537 
Segment capital additions     3,746    308    4,054 

    (in thousands)  
    Revenues  
     
    2006   2005   2004  
            
United States   $ 75,410  $ 85,837  $ 87,538 
Other     2,185    2,288    2,369 
Consolidated   $ 77,595  $ 88,125  $ 89,907 

    Operating income (loss)  
     
    2006   2005   2004  
            
United States   $ (5,336) $ (3,620) $ (295)

Other     1,507    1,715    1,797 
Consolidated   $ (3,829) $ (1,905) $ 1,502 

    Long-lived assets  
     
    2006   2005   2004  
            
United States   $ 37,986  $ 72,354  $ 75,851 
Other     414    445    787 
Consolidated   $ 38,400  $ 72,799  $ 76,638 

9.  Legal Proceedings 



settlement agreement of September 2005 and other agreements intended to consummate the transaction contemplated by the purchase option.  
 
The Company concluded that it could not realize the benefits it reasonably expected when it exercised the option in September 2004. As a result, the Company notified SILV in late 
September 2006 that it rescinded the exercise of the purchase option. SHF will continue to manage the Hotel pursuant to the terms of its management agreement. Since the payments 
under the note following a purchase of the Hotel Lot and Commercial Lot would have been substantially the same as the minimum payments due to SILV under the management 
agreement, there is no detrimental effect on the Company’s cash flow as a result of this rescission. 
 
Other 
 
The Company is also from time to time subject to routine litigation incidental to its business, and generally covered by insurance. The Company believes that the results of such 
litigation will not have a materially adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition. 
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The table below allocates the Company's income tax expense (benefit) based upon the source of income:

 

 
In 2006, the Company recorded a net tax benefit of $1,698,000 on its pre-tax loss of $5,221,000. The 2006 tax benefit is lower than the statutory rate primarily because of foreign taxes paid 
on income from the Company’s managed hotels in Egypt and licensed hotels in Peru, which were only partially offset by work opportunity tax credits received in New Orleans related to 
Hurricane Katrina. 
 
During 2003 and 2004, the Company recorded valuation allowances totaling $3,862,000 against the federal income tax benefits on its pre-tax losses of approximately $10.6 million incurred 
during these two years, since it was uncertain if the Company could realize a future benefit for these losses. In addition, valuation allowances of $296,000 were recorded against Florida 
state tax loss carry forwards, for the same reason. In April 2005, the Company completed the transfer of the land and improvements of Sonesta Beach Resort Key Biscayne (see Note 2 -
Operations). This transaction resulted in significant taxable income, and the Company therefore reversed in 2005 the valuation allowances previously recorded, since it received a 
benefit in 2005 for the prior years’ losses. 
 
In 2005, a foreign subsidiary of the Company sold land it had owned in Costa Rica, and recorded a pre-tax gain of $3,950,000 on the sale. The foreign subsidiary remitted the proceeds to 
the parent company, and in accordance with IRS Code Section 965(a) of the American Job Creations Act of 2004, the Company was able to 
receive a “temporary dividends received deduction” of approximately $3.1 million, resulting in tax savings of approximately $1.1 million. 
 
A reconciliation of net tax expense (benefit) applicable to income or losses at the statutory rate follows: 
 

10.  Income Taxes 

    (in thousands)  
     
    2006   2005   2004  
         
    Domestic   Foreign   Domestic   Foreign   Domestic   Foreign  
                     
Income (loss) before income taxes   $ (6,848) $ 1,627  $ (4,637) $ 3,950  $ (6,114) $ 1,938 
                                 
Federal, foreign and state income                                

tax provision (benefit)                                
Current federal income tax (benefit)   $ (913) $ 561  $ 8,444  $ 963  $ (1,447) $ 301 
State and foreign tax, principally  current     85    262    548    216    125    663 
Deferred federal and state                                

income tax (benefit)     (1,690)   (3)   (11,684)   20    (684)   (305)

Federal tax valuation allowance     --     --     (4,844)   982    2,131    (358)

    $ (2,518) $ 820  $ (7,536) $ 2,181  $ 125  $ 301 

    (in thousands)  
     
    2006   2005   2004  
            
Expected benefit for taxes at statutory rate   $ (1,827) $ (241) $ (1,420)

Valuation allowance (reversal)     --     (3,862)   1,773 
Temporary dividends deduction on foreign earnings remitted     --     (1,069)   --  
Tax on previously unremitted foreign earnings     --     158    --  
State income taxes, net of federal benefit     5    (171)   83 
Foreign income taxes     262    --     --  
Katrina work opportunity tax credits     (186)   --     --  
Other     48    (170)   (10)

         
    $ (1,698) $ (5,355) $ 426 
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Deferred tax expense (benefits) result from temporary differences in the recognition of revenues and expenses for tax and financial reporting purposes. The source of these differences 
and their tax effects are as follows:

 

 
Temporary differences between the financial statement carrying amounts and the tax basis of assets and liabilities that give rise to significant portions of deferred income taxes at 
December 31, 2006 and 2005 relate to the following: 
 

 
At December 31, 2006, the Company had state net operating loss carry-forwards of approximately $23,800,000 for income tax purposes. Of the total carry-forwards available at December 
31, 2006, approximately 
$3,200,000 expires in 2007, $4,800,000 expires in 2008, $4,900,000 expires in 2009, $4,200,000 expires in 2010, $3,700,000 expires in 2011, and $3,000,000 expires in 2012. For financial 
reporting purposes, valuation allowances of $1,600,000 have been recognized at December 31, 2006 and 2005, to offset the deferred tax assets related to those carry-forwards. 

    (in thousands)  
     
    2006   2005   2004  
            
Tax depreciation more (less) than book depreciation   $ (546) $ (1,168) $ 89 
Federal tax on deferred gain on sale of assets     (178)   (10,002)   --  
State tax on deferred gain on sale of assets     10    (725)   --  
Foreign tax credits used (carried forward)     --     301    (301)
Alternative minimum tax and general 

business credits used (carried forward) 
 

  --     1,452    (103)

Pension contribution less than pension expense     (987)   (137)   (763)

Valuation allowance (reversal)     --     (1,428)   989 
Other temporary differences     8    43    129 
    $ (1,693) $ (11,664) $ 40 

    (in thousands)  
     
    2006   2005  
Current deferred tax asset            

Expenses accrued but deferred for tax purposes   $ 353  $ 456 
Current deferred tax asset   $ 353  $ 456 
             
Long-term deferred tax assets (liabilities)             

Depreciation book tax difference   $ (6,377) $ (6,923)

Pension expense in excess of contributions     3,137    2,150 
Federal tax on deferred gain on sale of assets     10,180    10,002 
State tax on deferred gain on sale of assets     715    725 
State tax benefits of $1,600,000 in 2006 and 2005 from net            

operating loss carry-forwards, net of valuation allowance     --     --  
Other     218    123 

       
Deferred tax asset   $ 7,873  $ 6,077 
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VITALE, CATURANO & COMPANY

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Sonesta International Hotels Corporation:

 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Sonesta International Hotels Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 and the related 
consolidated statements of operations, stockholder’s equity, comprehensive income (loss) and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2006. These 
consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on 
our audits.  
 
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform an 
audit of its internal controls over financial reporting. Our audit included consideration of internal controls over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal controls over financial reporting. Accordingly, we 
express no such opinion. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. An audit also 
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our 
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.  
 
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Sonesta International Hotels Corporation and 
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 
2006, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
As discussed in Notes 1 and 7 to the consolidated financial statements, on December 31, 2006, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 158 "Employers' 
Accounting for Defined Benefit Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefit Plans." 
 
/s/ Vitale, Caturano & Company, LTD 
  
VITALE, CATURANO & COMPANY, LTD. 
 
Boston, Massachusetts 
March 15, 2007 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Certified Public Accountants An Independent Member of Baker Tilly International 
80 City Square, Boston, Massachusetts 02129 617-912---9000 FX 617-912-9001   www.vitale.com 

29



Sonesta International Hotels Corporation
Executive Offices, 116 Huntington Avenue
Boston, Massachusetts 02116 - Telephone (617) 421-5400 Fax (617) 421-5402 
 
SONESTA DIRECTORS

     
George S. Abrams (2) 
Winer & Abrams
Attorneys at Law

Charles J. Clark (2) 
Director of Corporate Relations,
Youthbuild USA

Stephanie Sonnabend
Chief Executive Officer and
President, Sonesta International Hotels Corporation

     
Vernon R. Alden (2)(3) 
Director and Trustee of
Several organizations

Paul Sonnabend (1) 
Chairman of the Executive Committee and Executive 
Vice President,
Sonesta International Hotels Corporation

Roger P. Sonnabend (1) 
Executive Chairman of the Board,
Sonesta International Hotels Corporation

     
Joseph L. Bower (1)(2)(3) 
Professor,
Harvard Business School

Peter J. Sonnabend
Chief Executive Officer and
Vice Chairman, Sonesta International Hotels 
Corporation

Jean C. Tempel (1) (3) 
Managing Directo,r
First Light Capital, LLC

     
(1) Member Executive Committee (2) Member Audit Committee (3) Member of Compensation Committee 

 
SONESTA OFFICERS

     
Roger P. Sonnabend
Executive Chairman of the Board

Stephen Sonnabend
Senior Vice President

Alan M. Sonnabend
Vice President - Development 

     
Peter J. Sonnabend
Chief Executive Officer and Vice
Chairman

Carol C. Beggs
Vice President - Technology  

Jacqueline Sonnabend
Executive Vice President

     
Stephanie Sonnabend
Chief Executive Officer
and President

Felix Madera
Vice Present - International 

Scott T. Corey
Vice President - Revenue and  
Distribution

     
Paul Sonnabend
Chairman of the Executive Committee
and Executive Vice President

Boy A.J. van Riel
Vice President and Treasurer

David Rakouskas
Secretary and 
Corporate Controller

  Kathy S. Rowe
Senior Vice President

 

 
SONESTA HOTELS AND OTHER OPERATIONS

     
Royal Sonesta Hotel Sonesta Club Sonesta Posada del Inca

Boston (Cambridge), Massachusetts (1) Sharm el Sheikh, Egypt (2) El Olivar, Lima, Peru (3) 
     
Royal Sonesta Hotel Sonesta Beach Resort Sonesta Posada del Inca

New Orleans, Louisiana (1) Taba, Egypt (2) Sacred Valley, Yucay, Peru (3) 
     
Chateau Sonesta Hotel Sonesta Hotel Sonesta Posada del Inca

New Orleans, Louisiana (2) Cairo, Egypt (2) Lake Titicaca, Puno, Peru (3) 
     
Sonesta Hotel & Suites Sonesta Hotel Sonesta Maho Beach Resort & Casino

Coconut Grove, Miami, Florida (2) Port Said, Egypt (2) St. Maarten (3) 
     
Trump International Sonesta Beach Resort Sonesta St. George I Cruise Ship Sonesta Great Bay Beach Resort & Casino

Sunny Isles, Miami, Florida (2) Luxor, Egypt (2) St. Maarten (3) 
     
Sonesta Orlando at Tierra Del Sol Resort Sonesta Nile Goddess Cruise Ship Sonesta Posada del Inca

Orlando, Florida (2) Cairo, Egypt (2) Cusco, Peru (3) 
(under development)    
    Sonesta Posada del Inca

Sonesta Hotel Doha Sonesta Sun Goddess Cruise Ship Miraflores, Lima, Peru (3) 
Doha, Qatar (2) Cairo, Egypt (2)  
(under development)    
    Sonesta Posada del Inca

Sonesta Beach Resort Sonesta Moon Goddess Cruise Ship Arequipa, Peru (3) 
Sharm el Sheikh, Egypt (2) Cairo, Egypt (2)  
     
Sonesta St. George Hotel Sonesta Star Goddess Cruise Ship Sonesta Hotel Iberepuera



Luxor, Egypt (2) Cairo, Egypt (2) Sao Paulo, Brazil (3) 
     
    Sonesta Hotel Brasilia

    Brasilia, Brazil (3) 
     
(1) Owned or Leased (2) Operated under Management Agreement (3) Licensed 

 
For reservations, call toll free 800-Sonesta (800-766-3782), or 
visit us at Sonesta.com

   

     
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS    
Vitale, Caturano & Company, Ltd., 80 City Square, Boston, MA 02129

     
TRANSFER AGENT    
American Stock Transfer, 59 Maiden Lane, Plaza Level, New York, NY 10038

 
 
 
 
 
 

30



 



EXHIBIT 21

 
  

  
  

ALPHABETICAL LIST OF WHOLLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES 
 
 

Anguilla Hotel Management, Inc.
Brewster Wholesale Corporation
Charterhouse of Cambridge Trust
Florida Sonesta Corporation
Hotel Corporation of America
Hotel Corporation of Georgia
Key Biscayne Land Corporation
Newo Aruba N.V.
P.R. By Design, Inc.
Royal Sonesta, Inc.
Sonesta Charitable Foundation, Inc.
Sonesta Coconut Grove, Inc.
Sonesta Costa Rica, S.A.
Sonesta Curacao Hotel Corporation, N.V.
Sonesta Hotels of Anguilla Limited
Sonesta Hotels of Florida, Inc.
Sonesta Hotels of Mississippi, Inc.
Sonesta International Hotels Limited
Sonesta Orlando, Inc. (formerly S.I.A. Advertising, Inc.)
Hotel Corporation of America (Bermuda) Limited
Port Royal Company, Limited
Sonesta Licensing Corporation
Sonesta Louisiana Hotels Corporation
Sonesta of Massachusetts, Inc.
Sonesta Middle East Hotel Corporation
TBD, Inc.

 



Exhibit 22

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTING FIRM ON SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of 
Sonesta International Hotels Corporation:

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Sonesta International Hotels Corporation referred to in our report dated March 15, 2007, which is included in the 
2006 Annual Report to Shareholders of Sonesta International Hotels Corporation and incorporated by reference in Part II of this form, we have also audited Schedule II as it relates to 
the year ended December 31, 2006. In our opinion, this schedule presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial data as of and for the three years ended December 31, 2006, required 
to be set forth therein.

/s/ Vitale, Caturano & Company, LTD 
 
VITALE, CATURANO & COMPANY, LTD. 
 
Boston, Massachusetts 
March 15, 2007 

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

As independent registered public accountants, we hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in this Annual Report on Form 10-K of our report dated March 15, 2007 on the 
consolidated financial statements of Sonesta International Hotels Corporation as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 and for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 
2006, included in the 2006 Annual Report to Shareholders of Sonesta International Hotels Corporation. 

 
/s/ Vitale, Caturano & Company, LTD 
 
 
VITALE, CATURANO & COMPANY, LTD. 
 
Boston, Massachusetts 
March 22, 2007 

 



Exhibit 31(a)
I, Boy A. J. van Riel, certify that: 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

  
 

1.     I have reviewed the Annual Report on Form 10K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006 of Sonesta International Hotels Corporation; 

2.     Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in 
light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; 

3.     Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of 
operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 

4.     The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have: 

a)  Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material 
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in 
which this report is being prepared; 

b)  Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the 
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and  

c)  Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the 
registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control 
over financial reporting; and  

5.     The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and 
the Audit Committee of registrant’s Board Directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions): 

a)  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely 
affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and 

b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial 
reporting. 

     
   
 
 

 
 

 
 

Date: March 20, 2007 By:  /s/ Boy A.J. van Riel
 

Name  Boy A.J. van Riel
  Title Vice President and Treasurer



Exhibit 31(b)
I, Peter J. Sonnabend, certify that: 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

1.     I have reviewed the Annual Report on Form 10K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006 of Sonesta International Hotels Corporation; 

2.     Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in 
light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; 

3.     Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of 
operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 

4.     The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have: 

a)  Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material 
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in 
which this report is being prepared; 

b)  Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the 
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and  

c)  Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the 
registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control 
over financial reporting; and  

5.     The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and 
the Audit Committee of registrant’s Board Directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions): 

a)  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely 
affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and 

b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial 
reporting. 

     
   
 
 

 
 

 
 

Date: March 20, 2007 By:  /s/ Peter J. Sonnabend
 

Peter J. Sonnabend
  Title Chief Executive Officer and VIce Chairman



 
Exhibit 31(c)

I, Stephanie Sonnabend, certify that: 
 
        

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

1.             
  

I have reviewed the Annual Report on Form 10K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006 of Sonesta International Hotels Corporation; 

2.     Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in 
light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; 

3.     Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of 
operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 

4.     The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have: 

a)  Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material 
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in 
which this report is being prepared; 

b)  Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the 
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and  

c)  Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the 
registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control 
over financial reporting; and  

5.     The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and 
the Audit Committee of registrant’s Board Directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions): 

a)  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely 
affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and 

b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial 
reporting. 

     
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

Date: March 20, 2007 By:  /s/ Stephanie Sonnabend
 

Stephanie Sonnabend
  Title Chief Executive Officer and President



EXHIBIT 32

 
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO

18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 

In connection with the filing of the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006 (the “Report”) by Sonesta International Hotels Corporation (the 
“Company”), we, Peter J. Sonnabend, Stephanie Sonnabend and Boy A. J. van Riel, in our respective positions of CEO & Vice Chairman, CEO & President and Treasurer, hereby certify 
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. ss. 1350, as adopted pursuant to ss. 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the best of our knowledge: 
  

  

  

  
Boston, March 20, 2007

  
 

 

 

 

1.  The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and 

2.  The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company. 

/s/ Peter J. Sonnabend

Peter J. Sonnabend 
Chief Executive Officer and Vice Chairman 

/s/ Stephanie Sonnabend

Stephanie Sonnabend 
Chief Executive Officer and President 

/s/ Boy van Riel

Boy van Riel 
Vice President and Treasurer 
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